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Minutes: 

Relating to the reporting of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult 

Senator David Hogue - Chairman 

Senator Phil Murphy - District 20 - See written testimony - Proposes an amendment (1) 

Senator Hogue -Ask for a definition of vulnerable adult 

Senator Murphy - Doesn't have one but says you know it when you see it 

Senator Sitte - Thinks there is a lot of gray areas and would like to see some safe-guards 
in place. 

Senator Murphy - Reads from the code the definition of vulnerable adult 

Cher Meyer - Thompson NO - Relates an example of an elderly person in her family. See 
written testimony (2) 

Doug Wegh - Reads testimony from Kim Jacobson - See written testimony (3) 

Mary Quintus - Retired Nurse- Member of Silver-haired Legislature - See written testimony 
(4) 

John Langenfelder - Relates story about his family member. 

Courtney Kobel - NO Medical Association - In support 

Dr. Mike Booth - In support. He would like to see protection for the reporter. He says he 
has seen some cases of abuse in his practice. 

Gretchen Dobervich -Alzheimer's Association - See written testimony (5) 

Rick Clayburgh - NO Banker's Association - Gives a hand-out - (6) He would like to see 
banks exempt and thinks the amendment does that. He suggests that proper funding be 
put in place for the investigations of the elder or vulnerable adult. 
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Senator Hogue - Does that statute give immunity if you report in good faith. 

Clayburgh - Replies it does. 

Curtis Holmrast - EMS - Oaks NO - Relates he is an EMS educator and would like to see 
this pass. 

Opposition 

David Boeck - Lawyer for the Protection & Advocacy Project - See written testimony (7) 

Bill Neumann - NO State Bar Association - See written testimony (8) 

Senator Hogue -Asks if we exempt bankers and lawyers what is left? 

Neumann - Mentions who would be left. 

Senator Hogue - Maybe the clergy would like to be exempt 

Senator Grabinger - Mentions it wouldn't preclude them to report some abuse 

Neutral 

Close the hearing 
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Minutes: Vote 

Senator David Hogue - Chairman 

Senator Hogue explains the bill. Senator Lyson asks about the amendment removing 
attorneys. Senator Hogue says professions have a discretionary duty to report meaning if 
they do report the law provides them with immunity from claims that they are subject to civil 
claims for reporting. He mentions the fiscal note based on the supposition that if there is 
mandated reporting requirements there will be a necessity for more folks to deal with this. 
Dept. of Human Services is estimating 8 full time equivalents. The committee talks about all 
the amendments that are wanted. Senator Berry points out that it seems everyone is all for 
it if they are exempted. 

Senator Sitte moves a do pass on the Murphy amendment 02003 
Senator Armstrong 

Discussion 
Senator Hogue said the intent of this legislation is to protect this class of individuals that are 
unable to protect themselves and if that is the purpose then it shouldn't be watered down 
with this amendment. 

Vote - 3 yes, 4 no 
Amendment fails 

Discussion 
The committee discusses reasonable cause. 

Senator Berry moves the Berry amendment (15:39) - Remove on page 1, line 10 
reasonable cause to believe 
Senator Armstrong seconded 
Vote 3 yes, 4 no 
Amendment fails 

Senator Grabinger moves a do pass rerefer to Appropriations 
Senator Nelson seconded 
Vote 5 yes, 2 no 
Senator Nelson will carry 



Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2323 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0210412013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 't' t'' t d  d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tcJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $1,611,771 
Appropriations $1,611,771 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$1,577,179 
$1,577,179 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The bill will require mandatory reporting of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult and provide a penalty. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 subsection 1 of the bill requires mandatory reporting by any medical or mental health professional or 
personnel, law enforcement officer, firefighter, member of the clergy, financial service provider, attorney or caregiver 
having reasonable cause to believe a vulnerable adult has been subjected to abuse or neglect. Section 1 subsection 
2 provides for voluntary reporting by any person not required to report under subsection 1 .  For the first four months 
of SFY 201 3, 3 1 6  referrals have been received. It is estimated that under this bill, referrals would increase by 70%, 
based on similar legislation that was implemented in South Dakota. With a 70% increase, the estimated annual 
number of referrals could be 1 ,6 1 2 .  It is estimated that, at a minimum, this would require 1 FTE to be located in each 
of the eight regions. of the state for a total of 8 FTE. The potential impact on State's Attorneys related to the 
provisions on failure to report is undeterminable since there is no way to estimate the number of the cases that 
would be prosecuted. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The fiscal impact for the Department of Human Services for the 201 3-1 5 biennium would be the cost for 8 FTE to 
handle the increased number of referrals that would be received. Salary and fringe for 8 FTE would total 
$ 1 ,354, 1 97. Operating costs for travel, rent, office supplies, communications would total $21 7,574. IT costs for 



maintenance ofdatabase reporting system would total $40,000. Total cost for the 2013-15 biennium would total 
$1,611,771. The fiscal impact for DHS for the 2015-2017 biennium would be $1,577,179. This reflects the removal of 
one-time costs for office furniture and equipment that would occur in 2013-15 biennium. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The funding needed to perform the requirements provided for in SB 2323 are not included in the Department of 
Human Services appropriation bill (HB 1 012), therefore DHS would need a general fund appropriation of $1 ,611, 771 
for the 2013-15 biennium and $1,577,179 for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Name: Debra A. McDermott 

Agency: Department of Human Services 

Telephone: 701-328-1980 

Date Prepared: 02/05/2013 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 12, 2013 12:28pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_26_012 
Carrier: Nelson 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2323: Judiciary Committee (Sen. Hogue, Chairman) recommends DO PASS and BE 

REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (5 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT 
AND NOT VOTING). SB 2323 was rereferred to the Appropriations Committee. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_26_012 
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D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Reporting of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult 

Minutes: See attached testimony 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Monday, February 1 8, 2013 at 2:45 
pm In reference to SB 2323 Brittani Reim from Legislative Council and Tammy R. Dolan , 
OMB were also present. 

Senator Phil Murphy, District 20 (3.00) introduced the bill and shared what the bill is 
about is meeting the standard for mandatory reporting for vulnerable adults. He submitted 
proposed amendment #13.0803.02004. He stated the amendments would have some 
effect on the fiscal note and I am of two minds on the fiscal note and stated he is not so 
sure about the fiscal note on this bill. (5.12) 

Chairman Holmberg We need to work through the fiscal note. 

Senator Warner: had questions on who would be responsible for the vulnerable adult who 
is neglected. 

Senator Murphy: I am not sure how all of this gets handled. When you know that 
someone is being abused you report it. This isn't going to fix everything, but it will get some 
things going so we can fix it. I can't begin to focus my mind on the answer to your question. 

Chairman Holmberg: asked how many were here to testify for or against the bill and 
stated he needed to provide enough time for both sides. 

Senator Mathern: I know that there is exhaustive list of persons that would be asked to 
make a report, I note the term congregate care personnel in page 2, so that would cover 
facilities that provide assistant living services. An elder care facility -would that be correct? 

Senator Murphy: That would be correct. Our long term care folks have a good handle on 
this. 
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Chip Amermum, Director of Cass County Social Services testified in support of SB 
2323 and provided Testimony attached #2 of Kim Jacobson, Director- Traill County Social 
Services in support of SB 2323 and he stated he supports her description that she provided 
in her testimony. He stated he is in favor of the mandatory reporting laws. He talked about 
the involvement of Cass County and Region 5 regarding service programs for vulnerable 
adults and there are about 280 to 300 cases filed in Cass County. 
There was a question about what happens during the course of that assessment. Once we 
receive the report, the Department of Human Services have definitions of what is in a 
report, and also definitions and guidelines on what actions should take place. It is different 
than child protection because the state and the court system has the ability to remove that 
child until the court can see that. In adult cases we don't have the ability to do that. We do 
have the authority to bring it to Human Services to see if that person can make decisions 
for themselves; we have the ability to bring it to the states attorney if there is criminal 
action .. There is one concern I do have, if there is no funding for this bill it does lie directly 
with the Department or it's designees, which again filters down to the counties. There is 
insufficient funding for this service at this point (13.54) 
He submitted Testimony attached # 3 by Dr. Booth, President of ND Medical Association 

asking for a Do Pass on SB 2323. 

Chairman Holmberg: stated because there is no money in this bill and we pass this bill, 
and we got the budget for Human services and didn't put money in that would create some 
additional problems. He asked for further testimony for either for or against the bill. 

Bill Neumann, State Bar Association: testified in opposition to SB 2323 and provided 
Testimony attached# 4. We have no problem with the general idea of mandatory reporting 
of adult abuse but we strongly oppose the inclusion of attorneys as mandated reporters. If 
this bill becomes law with the word "attorney" in line 9, I will be forced to report confidential 
information. Everyone knows that information between an attorney and his client is 
confidential. This bill requires a breach of attorney-client relationship. (18.03) 

Senator Mathern: Was this issue brought to the policy committee? 

Bill Neumann: this issue was not only brought to the policy committee but the primary 
sponsor, Senator Murphy moved such an amendment to the policy committee for reasons 
that escape me. That committee rejected this and many other amendments that you are 
going to hear about from other people. (34.25) 

Marilyn Foss, ND Banker's Association testified in opposition of SB 2323 and explained 
their reasons for opposing the bill. In the policy committee we testified we would support 
the bill with Murphy's amendments, one additional amendment which he chose not to 
propose this morning was to take banks and credit unions out of the bill and the reason for 
that is that we do voluntary reporting under another section of law. NDBA sponsored a bill 
more than 10 years ago. It's codified at 32.03.55 to permit financial institutions to report 
suspected abusive elderly and vulnerable adults and we also had changes at that time to 
our financial privacy law to permit us to do that reporting. We oppose this bill and think our 
current systems are working well already. (24.16) 
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Chairman Holmberg: asked if they would object if the legislators would consider a 
legislative study on this bill. He was told no, they wouldn't oppose a study. 

Jeff Olson, Credit Union Association of ND stated that we oppose the bill and would like 
to be exempt from the bill. (27.26) 

John Brown, Executive Vice President of Independent Community Banks of ND 
testified in opposition of the bill in it's current form. He submitted Testimony attached #5 
asking that "financial institutions" be not included in this bill and Testimony attached# 6- an 
article from Department of the Treasury Financial Crimes Enforcement Network regarding 
elder financial exploitation. Under this act we are required to report suspected activities that 
would include elder financial exploitation. (29.30) 

Dana Bohn, Executive Director for ND Farm Credit Council: Asked for a do not pass on 
this bill. We were in support of the amendments that were not adopted. 

Christopher Dotson, ND Catholic Conference: stated we oppose SB 2323. The bill in it's 
current form is unacceptable. The issue regarding us is the line regarding clergy and the 
need for confidentiality. This is a serious matter for us. 

Chairman Holmberg: I hope you understand, we may as a committee find it awkward to 
attach amendments presented in a policy committee. It is much more our role at that stage 
to say we don't like the bill for whatever the reasons are because the policy committee had 
those issues before it and chose not to. Thank you for your testimony. We will close the 
hearing on 2323. 

Vice Chairman Grindberg Moved a Do Not Pass. 2"d by Senator Wanzek. 

Chairman Holmberg: Discussion. Call the roll on a DO NOT PASS on SB 2323. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 8 Nay: 4 Absent 1. Chairman Holmberg will carry 
the bill. The hearing was closed on SB 2323. 



Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2323 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0210412013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 't' t'' t d  d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tcJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $1,611,771 
Appropriations $1,611,771 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$1,577,179 
$1,577,179 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The bill will require mandatory reporting of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult and provide a penalty. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 subsection 1 of the bill requires mandatory reporting by any medical or mental health professional or 
personnel, law enforcement officer, firefighter, member of the clergy, financial service provider, attorney or caregiver 
having reasonable cause to believe a vulnerable adult has been subjected to abuse or neglect. Section 1 subsection 
2 provides for voluntary reporting by any person not required to report under subsection 1. For the first four months 
of SFY 2013, 316 referrals have been received. It is estimated that under this bill, referrals would increase by 70%, 
based on similar legislation that was implemented in South Dakota. With a 70% increase, the estimated annual 
number of referrals could be 1,612. It is estimated that, at a minimum, this would require 1 FTE to be located in each 
of the eight regions. of the state for a total of 8 FTE. The potential impact on State's Attorneys related to the 
provisions on failure to report is undeterminable since there is no way to estimate the number of the cases that 
would be prosecuted. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The fiscal impact for the Department of Human Services for the 2013-15 biennium would be the cost for 8 FTE to 
handle the increased number of referrals that would be received. Salary and fringe for 8 FTE would total 
$1,354,197. Operating costs for travel, rent, office supplies, communications would total $217,574. IT costs for 



maintenance ofdatabase reporting system would total $40,000. Total cost for the 2013-15 biennium would total 
$1,611,771. The fiscal impact for DHS for the 2015-2017 biennium would be $1,577,179. This reflects the removal of 
one-time costs for office furniture and equipment that would occur in 2013-15 biennium. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The funding needed to perform the requirements provided for in SB 2323 are not included in the Department of 
Human Services appropriation bill (HB 1 012), therefore DHS would need a general fund appropriation of $1 ,611, 771 
for the 2013-15 biennium and $1,577,179 for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Name: Debra A. McDermott 

Agency: Department of Human Services 

Telephone: 701-328-1980 

Date Prepared: 02/05/2013 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 18, 2013 3:31pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_30_021 
Carrier: Holmberg 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2323: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends DO NOT 

PASS (8 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2323 was placed on 
the Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_30_021 
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Committee Clerk Signature 

House Judiciary Committee 
Prairie Room, State Capitol 

SB 2323 
March 20, 2013 

Job# 20248 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the reporting of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: Testimony 1, 2,3,4 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: Opens the hearing on SB 2323. 

Senator Murphy District 20: Testimony and amendment #1 (including testimony handouts 
from Ron Guggisberg and Cher Meyer also includes a proposed amendment) : Time on 
tape 1 :35 to 8:06. 

Rep. Gary Paur: Was there an interim study for this specific neglect of vulnerable adults? 

Senator Murphy: Not to my knowledge. 

Rep. Gary Paur: Why in the bill do you have the definitions of financial service provider 
and medical mental health professional in section 3 when the definitions in 50.25.2-02, 
when the definitions are in 01? 

Senator Murphy: I was not able to amend this out yet but there a proposed amendment 
attached. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: This is to protect the elderly and provide immunity for those 
who report. Is this immunity in some other part of the law? Definition of vulnerable adult is 
that somewhere else? 

Senator Murphy: Yes I believe it is but I am unsure as to where it is. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: It doesn't say vulnerable elderly adults but only vulnerable 
adults. 

Senator Murphy: Yes it is endangerment of vulnerable adult's penalty under 12. 1 -31-07. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: This does not have elderly adult, only adult, so it is you 
intention that this would apply to other vulnerable adults in the definition? 
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Senator Murphy: From the definition in 1 2.1-31-07 I would say that it is all vulnerable 
adults. 

Rep. Diane Larson: I am more familiar with child abuse and neglect reports and there is a 
child protection team that people can report to and do investigation along with law 
enforcements. Do you know is this reported abuse just investigated by police or is there a 
vulnerable team going to be developed? 

Senator Murphy: I am not familiar with all of the tools that North Dakota has for protecting 
or investigating. There is a fiscal note and the reason behind this fiscal note is that it would 
provide some FTE's in each of the eight Human Services Regions. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: To follow up on what I was asking about vulnerable adult, the 
definition the substantial mental or functual impairment are also defined in 50.25.2-02. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: Is caregiver defined and what would caregiver include? 

Senator Murphy: From any kind of caregiver any abuse should be reported. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: So caregiver could mean anyone. 

Senator Murphy: When you know you need to report that. Knowing that you need to report 
it helps a lot. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: What is Congregate Care Personal? 

Senator Murphy: It would be someone who works in long term care facility. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: As I look through the list of these people, I think most of these 
people I think would have a professional obligation to report this abuse. 

Senator Murphy: A lot of these folks thought this was part of code already. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: If you are in any of these professions you are already have to 
follow a set of ethical procedures or are you aware of any problem of this abuse in North 
Dakota by these professional people? 

Senator Murphy: No I do not have any knowledge of this problem but have study what 
other states have intact. 

Mike Reitan, Assistant Chief West Fargo Police Department: ( 1 9:23 to 23:23.) Testimony 
#2. Law enforcement frequently becomes involved. 

On Page 1 line 14 and 15 talks about the caregiver. Does law enforcement report abuse in 
my agency we prepare a report about suspected abuse and send it to the County Adult 
Social Service Program. 
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Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: A question on liability part of this. There is a penalty being 
added to the person who is required to report and willfully fails to report will be guilty of an 
infraction. There is also that someone make a willfully false report is liable in Civil action for 
damages. We are adding a mandatory reporting requirement and if they don't report 
something that is infraction but what are you thought were if a person who willfully fails to 
report, would that person be liable for Civil Actions? 

Mike Reitan: I don't have a response for that. I don't know how that would play out in court. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: The congregate care personal, do you know who that would 
be? 

Mike Reitan: Meals on Wheels personal or other people who check on regular bases the 
welfare of an adult. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: You gave an example of financial abuse and yet we are being 
asked to remove financial professionals. How do you feel about that? 

Mike Reitan: I do have some concern about the amendment removing financial 
professionals. What I am finding is that we have to correct these issues in stages and this 
is possibly a good start. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: Are people willing to report things they see this abuse? 

Mike Reitan: We still suffer North Dakota nice and many didn't call because it wasn't there 
place. There is an education process also. We do not want to have tough enforcement for 
not bringing information forward without working with them. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: So with this bill do you feel you would have the discretion to do 
that? 

Mike Reitan: We would make a report. 

Mike Booth, President of the North Dakota Medical Association and practicing 
cardiovascular and thoracic surgeon: Testimony #3, see attached. Time on tape is 32:55 to 
36:22. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: You don't see this as an added burden to put on the list as far as the 
medical people that you know and is probably already. 

Mike Booth: It is an additional responsibility in terms of the requirements but do think it is 
appropriate. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: I see the first FN on the South Dakota law. Are you familiar at all with 
the medical side of the reporting of that bill? 

Mike Booth: My only familiarity is what was given at the first hearing. 
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Kim Jacobson, Director of Traill County Social Services: Testimony #4.Time on tape 40:03 
to 45:20. 

Rep. Diane Larson: What is the process at how and who it gets reported to? Could the 
same forms work that are used in child abuse for children? Will these same reports be 
going to County Social Services, or to the DHS? 

Kim Jacobson: We are already receiving reports of suspected abuse. Right now our 
resources are very limited as far as who is qualified and charged with this duty. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: Isn't it true in all regions with the exception of region 5 that the reports 
go to the Human Service Centers and not to the counties? 

Kim Jacobson: That is correct. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: You state that the North Dakota Century Code clearly defines 
that the State is responsible for vulnerable adult protection, where is that in the century 
code? 

Kim Jacobson: I don't have that with me but can give you follow up to you. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: There is a fiscal note but there is not funding in the bill, do you 
know what the funding is? And it asks for 8 FTE's. How would you calculate your change 
in work load in terms of the reporting? 

Rep. Diane Larson: It big part is the education of the reporting piece. We have definitely 
seen an upward climb as far as the reporting since we began doing stats on what has been 
reported. As with child abuse we can report it to Law Enforcement or Social Services. If 
there has been a crime committed, they are arrested at that time. If there is an 
investigation to happen it would be turned over to Social Service. 

Rick Clayberg, President and of North Dakota Bankers Association: Time on tape 58:04 to 
1 :02:50. In support of SB 2323 as it left the Senate. We also are in support of the 
amendment Senator Murphy has brought forth. I would like to offer some clarification as 
there has been some miss information on the financial exploitation. There is in statue now, 
chapter 50, the financial institutions now have the ability to voluntarily report financial 
exploitation. The North Dakota Bankers Association participates in a program of training 
our front line tellers and employees who deal with customers, on dealing with and 
recognizing financial exploitation. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: The bill still has financial services in it but the amendment will 
remove that language on the first page. 

Rick Clayberg: Our understanding was that Senator Murphy an amendment to address all 
of it, he inadvertently grabbed the amendment when he did a scan amendments. Financial 
providers could mean a bank or credit union or not. But it is saying specifically 

Accountant, Stock broker, financial advisor 
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Rep. Lois Delmore: I understand the complications. Do you have a numbers of who you 
have actually turned in to the authorities when you thought there was financial exploitation? 
Did you turn it over to Law Enforcement or Human Service? 

Rick Clayberg: I can provide you with some information, some of it we do not know all the 
time when our bank has this information. I had not intended to testify today or I would have 
the training manual available to you as I did for the Senate. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: You certainly would follow up however on large withdrawals from 
anyone's account do you not? 

Rick Clayberg: That does occur, but not so much as the size of the withdrawal, but the 
triggers that are in place that check activities in customers' accounts. 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: Does the voluntarily reporting protect the customers you serve 
or do we still have the apprehension of not getting involved? 

Rick Clayberg: This will assure immunity when reporting. 

Bill Shalhoob, Greater North Dakota Chamber: Time on tape 1 :09:56 to 1 :1 1 :1 5. We are 
supporting the amendments of the bill without the amendment we are in opposition of the 
bill. 

Greg Tschider, Credit Unions of the Dakotas: Time on tape 1 :1 1 :29 to 1 : 1 9:1 6. I speak in 
favor of the bill as amended. He then discussed the difficult of monitoring of accounts. 

Steve Becker, Executive Director of Professional Insurance Agencies of North Dakota: 
Time on tape 1 :20:58 to 1 :22:07. I represent about 300 independent agencies and over 
1 000 agents in the state. We support the bill with the amendment. Our agencies would not 
know many of the abuses that are going on, as they see their client once a year. 

recess 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the reporting of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: Testimony and handout 1, 2 

Chairman Kim Koppelman: Reopens the hearing on SB 2323. 

David Boeck, Attorney for Protection and Advocacy: Testimony #1, see attached. Time 
on tape :03 to 1:12. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: Could you explain the proposed amendment? 

David Boeck: Inaudible. Is required to report to P&A, the person making that report would 
not also have to report to the Vulnerable Adult Program so there are no duplicate 
requirements. Providers of services would provide training on reporting requirements. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: If that report is made to P&A do the others get a copy of 
that? 

David Boeck: Not in writing, if appropriate we make a report to Vulnerable Adult Program. 
We are all working together so there is not duplication of effort. Only one program 
responses and people only need to report to one program. We also work with law 
enforcement as does the Vulnerable Adult Program. Police Officers often make reports to 
us. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: Why would you want everybody to go through when Human Service 
or the Police might be the best and first place to report? 

David Boeck: We coordinate with the Vulnerable Adult Program so there wouldn't be 
disagreement over how this would work. The reporting requirement for anyone would 
satisfy the requirement for reporting to the Vulnerable Adult Program and if we receive a 
report that isn't appropriately sent to us then we forward that to them. Law enforcement 
already reports to P&A, and that is a requirement in the statute. 
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Rep. Kathy Hogan: I know you do the mandatory reporting with developmental disabilities 
but the mental illness side is a little grayer. Particularly individuals with Alzheimer's and 
dementia do you get many reports on those kinds of individuals? Would you see yourself 
as the primary reporting entity for those individuals? 

David Boeck: I agree. We would investigate a report of abuse or neglect of a person with 
Alzheimer's or dementia. I'm advised that in the aging world dementia and Alzheimer's are 
not considered mental illnesses. So a report went to the Vulnerable Adult Program, they 
would forward it to us if it was appropriate for them. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: The whole issues of self-neglect do you have capacity to do 
investigations on self-neglect? Do you do many reports on self-neglect? 

David Boeck: Our statutes specifically addresses self-neglect. We do receive reports and 
do investigate them. I can't tell you what the number is. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: Asked to have the Department of Human Services Adult Protection 
staff to testify? 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: We can. 

Jan Engen Director of Aging Services Division: Handout #2, see attached. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: Would you describe for the committee the current voluntary reporting 
structure and the staffing patterns as they exist now and if this bill becomes mandatory how 
will the current structure be modified? 

Jan Engen: Currently Aging Services Division administers the voluntary adult protective 
services in the state of North Dakota. We have placed across the state dividing the state 
into the regional Human Service Center geography's. We have designated eight areas and 
for the most part the staff person that is employed at the Human Service Center in the 
aging unit will have job responsibility or a part of it that addresses vulnerable adult 
protective services. Prior to October 1, 2012 we had seven different methods of interpreting 
how reports were to be made. October 1, 2012 we implemented a new data collection 
system that has more standardized the reports. So much of the information I will provide 
you is based on that. Our current staff is composed of Region one we have .5 FTE, this 
individual has other duties as well. In Region three we have a .25 FTE. In Region four we 
have .6FTE, which is a temporary position. In Region five, the dollars that are made 
available are contracted with Cass County and they provide vulnerable adult protective 
services and they have 3.25 staff to do that. 

Rep. Diane Larson: The information we got from Kim Jacobson, she told us this is being 
supplemented with county funds even though it is a state responsibility, is the state not fully 
funding that portion of services in Cass County but it is elsewhere? 

Jan Engen: I will come back to that. In Region six we have a .25 position. In Region seven 
we have a full time position. In Region eight we have a .5 position. Funding that is made 
available from the Division is a combination of Title 7 dollars, which is from the Older 
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Americans Act, and these are designated specifically for prevention and we combine that 
with some Title 8 money from the Older Americans Act. The total amount we have 
available is $260,000. So if you look at Rep. Larson's question we have a total of $80,000 
that we contract to Cass County to provide those services which is supplemented with 
county money from Cass County and some of other counties in that region. I think there 
budget is $300,000. We do not have adequate funding currently. 

Rep. Diane Larson: In the other areas aren't contracting with County Social Services how 
is that then funded? 

Jan Engen: The Division makes money available ranging from $7,000 up to $80,000 in 
each of those geographic regions. That is supported in part by general funds through the 
Human Service Center budget. What happens if somebody identifies or has knowledge of 
and chooses to make a voluntary report they are going to call the number that is advertised 
for that region or they may call our office also. Those individuals would take the call and 
made the determination of whether an assessment is going to be done or not. I have 
compared the years from 2010 to the first months in 2013. We range in intakes from the old 
system of 395 to 687 with an average of 561. Compared to the first five months of the 
federal fiscal year for 2013 we have 504 calls. Annually we will have about 1200 calls. The 
new system has provides us better data. 

Rep. Randy Boehning: How are we going to train all those that are involved including the 
volunteers? Am I going to have to answer questions if I have weapons in my home, do I 
feel sad today to my doctor, Chiropractor, and Pharmacists? 

Jan Engen: I am not sure how that would be implemented but when you talk about the 
training part that is a part under the funding we receive from the Older American's Act is to 
provide training and awareness to the community. Funding availability makes that very 
difficult when your staff is doing more than one function in the community in addressing the 
number of intakes. 

Rep. Randy Boehning: How are we going to train all the volunteers, there are thousands 
and how are we going to pay for this. It is not reflected in a fiscal note? Why do they include 
everybody in there? 

Jan Engen: In my experience working in the Aging system for over 30 years, abuse 
training is essential in the community and through public relation information releases I 
know those APS workers have good relationships with law enforcement and medical 
community as an aging network. We rely on County Social Services entities to provide 
some of the support. I believe training will happen over time and will firm up our 
responsibilities. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: In needs to be a priority and you have a fiscal note on here and I 
understand there will be a need for people to be hired. I believe it is two FTE's and some 
other things in the fiscal note. Have you been that under reported in North Dakota? Do you 
think this is going to drive our numbers up substantially? 
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Jan Engen: Based on the information that we have currently and my discussions across 
the state, adding mandatory reporting, and yes I do think that will happen. All we can do is 
compare with the similar system that was in South Dakota. We have workers in the county 
system and Human Service Centers system that are not reporting currently. The 
information we received in recent years came through the medical community. 

Rep. Gary Paur: Do you have an opinion on just having the reports go to Protection and 
Advocacy instead a couple of agencies? 

Jan Engen: We attempt to work together for the most part. When reports come in for 
developmental disabilities and mental illness area we do not classify Alzheimer's and 
dementia as mental illness. If we were to get a call and it was identified and relating to 
developmental disability or seriously mental ill consumer we would make the transfer to 
P&A. If it were a family member calling, or from a licensed nursing home or board and care 
facility or assisted living facility those investigations would go to the Ombudsman Program 
as is in Century Code. We are already doing those things. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: So you have seen the proposed amendment from P&A and support 
that amendment? 

Jan Engen: I would have to study it more to look at the consequences of it but yes we can 
work together to do that. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: You mentioned a handout? 

Rep. Randy Boehning: Who is reporting from the handout you gave us? 

Jan Engen: I don't have it on the handout but we can track that information and I could 
provide that to you. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: Are you comfortable taking out the financially providers in this bill as 
we discussed in the first hearing? 

Jan Engen: I can understand where they are coming from but as an advocate for older 
adults I have concerns however I am neutral. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: It would be true if a financially provider saw a situation they thought 
was serious enough that intervention was needed they could still voluntarily report? Just 
not be a mandated reporter? 

Jan Engen: That's correct. 

Rep. Andy Maragos: Did you consult with the Department of Human Services at all on this 
proposed amendment? 

David Boeck: We spoke yesterday afternoon and I sent a copy of my testimony and 
proposed amendment by email. 
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Rep. Randy Boehning: How many staff do you have in your office? 

David Boeck: We have ten offices, approximately 25 people. 

Rep. Randy Boehning: With all the reporting are you going to need more FTE's to handle 
this load? 

David Boeck: I do not anticipate that we will be unable to handle the additional reports with 

our current staff. 

Rep. Randy Boehning: Would you be able to provide us with some numbers you possible 

could be receiving. 

David Boeck: I can try and get that and get it back to you today. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: We are not going to be meeting any further on this bill this 

week. We won't meet again until Monday. 

Vice Chairman Larry Klemin: No other testimony, closed the hearing on SO 2323. 
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Handout 1 

C hai rman Kim Koppelman: Opens SB 2323 for committee work. 

Handout from the Department of Human Services Aging Services Division Vulnerable Protective 
Services Report was distributed . 

1 :08 C hairman Koppelman: Read an email from Tom Tupa. There is no defin ition in the bil l  that 
im plies that this relates to Meals on Wheels folks. 

3 : 04 Representative Larson: I move a Do Pass on the Murphy amendments to remove financial 
service providers 03001 . Seconded by Representative Delmore. 

Representative Paur: The Credit Union Association says their people wouldn't know what to look 
for, etc. in this business and the banks said they trained their people to look for this. 

Representative Hogan: Of the referrals that we just received were from banks. They are doing it 
and continue to do it on a volunteer basis. 

5:13 Chairman Koppelman: Nothing prevents them from doing it ,  just an observation .  They are 
concerned about people sticking their nose in where it doesn't belong. 

A Voice Roll Call vote: Carried 

6 :32 Vice C hairman Klem in: Regarding an amendment that was to be proposed , I haven't seen it 
yet. On page 2 if a report is made that satisfies the reporting requirements. 

C hairman Koppelman: It's attached to the testimony. The amendment is on page 2 after l ine 5 
insert "a report if required by section 250 1 .304 satisfies al l  reporting requirements of this chapter. " 

Representative Maragos: I move a Do Pass on the amendment, seconded by Representative 
Hogan. 

A Voice Roll  Call  vote: Carried. 
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1 0: 1 0  Vice Chair Klemin: I move a Do Not Pass as amended on this. We have a voluntary 
system now and the fiscal note is qu ite high .  According to the testimony this is going to 
substantially increase the reporting because there will be many who report so they don't get 
penal ized for not reporting. Seconded by Representative Toman. 

1 1 : 21 Representative Hogan: I am going to oppose this because as one of the two states in the 
nation that doesn't have mandatory reporting it  has had a sign ificant impact. This wil l change how 
we are protecting elderly people. Mandatory reporting makes a difference. 

12:25 Representative Larson: There is mandatory reporting for child abuse and not for vulnerable 
adults? 

Representative Hogan: There is mandatory reporting for persons who are developmentally 
disabled under the state defin ition .  If they are receiving this and are receiving publ icly funded 
services for people with serious mental i l lness. 

Representative Larson: So this expands the number of vulnerable people that social workers are 
mandated to report? 

Representative Hogan: Absolutely. 

C hairman Koppelman: Is there a definition for vulnerable adult in this section? 

Representative Hogan: It's currently in the law. There is a section in the Century Code. 

Chai rman Koppelman: This will apply differently than that? 

Representative Hogan: No this applies under that but there's a separate defin ition u nder PNA. 
There are two defin itions. 

C hairman Koppelman: This would be broader? 

Representative Hogan: Yes. 

Representative Delmore: There is a new fiscal note. 

C hairman Koppelman: The penalty is an infraction and there is a penalty in current law for making 
a false report. Is  there a problem in terms of a lot of abuse going on that's not being reported in 
your experience? 

Representative Hogan: Absolutely. There are two primary issues. People are trained where and 
how to report. There is cautiousness about not understanding. 

1 6 :03 Chairman Koppelman: Does this deal with vulnerable or vulnerable elderly? 

Representative Hogan: It is vulnerable adults. This is broader because you deal with those people 
with mental i l lness who are not being covered. They haven't been trained where and how to report. 
They see situations and they don't know what to do. 

C hairman Koppelman: Does this bil l  solve that? 

Representative Hogan: I think it wi l l .  This is building our basic infrastructure to protect our elderly 
people. 
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1 7:48 Representative Larson:  I work with juveni les so am aware of what the child abuse reporting 
is and what it entai ls .  As a mandated reporter for child abuse that makes a difference to some 
people. 

19:03 Representative Paur: This does define vulnerable adult who has a substantial mental or 
functional impairment. 

Representative Hogan: The other issue in  terms of the impact of this is things l ike al l  the 
orientation procedures for EMS, staff or emergency rooms will not include training on mandatory 
reporting. 

C hairman Koppelman: Do you know what's prevented them from training people what to look for 
and how to report under voluntary reporting? 

Representative Hogan: The infrastructure is not in place. If not mandated by law they won't do it . 

C hai rman Koppelman: stated the motion on the floor is a Do Not Pass. 

A Do Not Pass Roll Cal l vote: Yes = 1 4, No = 9,  Absent = 2. Motion fai led. 

Representative Hogan: I move a Do Pass, seconded by Representative Hanson. 

C hairman Koppelman: The motion of a Do Pass as amended on Engrossed SB 2323. 

A Do Pass as amended and Re-refer to Appropriations Roll Call vote: 

Yes = 9, No = 3, Absent = 2. Motion carried . Carrier: Representative Hogan. 



Amendment to: SB 2323 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/02/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
f . 

t d d t l  levels and appropriations an tctpa e un er curren aw. 
2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other funds General Fund Other funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscaUmpact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provision$ 
having fisr;al impact (limited to "300 characters). 

. 
' . ' , ·  ,· . . . ' ' 

The bill will require mandator¥ �eporting for certain individuals having knowledge of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable 
adult and provide a penalty. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 subsection 1 of the bill requires mandatory reporting by any medical or mental health professional or 
personnel, law enforcement officer, firefighter, member of the clergy or caregiver having knowledge that a vulnerable 
adult has been subjected to abuse or neglect. However, a member of the clergy is not required to report if the 
knowledge is derived from information received in the capacity of spiritual advisor. Section 1 subsection 3 provides 
for voluntary reporting by any person not required to report under subsection 1 who has reasonable cause to believe 
that a vulnerable adult has been subjected to abuse or neglect or who has observed a vulnerable adult being 
subjected to conditions that would result in abuse or neglect. Since the individuals required to report abuse in 
Section 1 are already reporting there is no fiscal impact to the Department of Human Services. The potential impact 
on State's Attorneys related to the provisions of failure to report is undeterminable since it is not possible to estimate 
the number of the cases that would be prosecuted. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Name: Debra A. McDermott 

Agency: Department of Human Services 

Telephone: 701-328-1980 

Date Prepared: 04/03/2013 
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Amendment to: SB 2323 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

031081201 3 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels an d d d I appropnat10ns antJcJpate un er current aw. 

2011 -2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $431 , 1 1 6  

Appropriations $431 , 1 1 6  

201 5-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Fu nds 

$422,468 

$422,468 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

201 1 -201 3 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters) . 

The bil l  will require mandatory reporting for certain individuals having knowledge of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable 
adult and provide a penalty. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 subsection 1 of the bill requires mandatory reporting by any medical or mental health professional or 
personnel, law enforcement officer, firefighter, member of the clergy, financial service provider or caregiver having 
knowledge that a vulnerable adult has been subjected to abuse or neglect. However, a member of the clergy is not 
required to report if the knowledge is derived from information received in the capacity of spiritual advisor. Section 1 
subsection 2 provides for voluntary reporting by any person not required to report under subsection 1 .  For the first 
five months of SFY 20 1 3, 504 intakes have been received. Annualized, this would be 1 ,2 1 0  intakes. Research on 
the impact to South Dakota when they instituted a similar but less restrictive bil l ,  determined they had an increase of 
70% in the number of intakes received. Since SB 2323 is more restrictive, it's estimated the state would see an 
increase of 35%, half of the impact seen in South Dakota in the number of intakes received. With current an nual 
intakes of 1 ,21  0 ,  a 35% increase would result in an additional 424 intakes per year for a total of 848 additional 
intakes for the 201 3-20 1 5  biennium. The addition of 2 FTE would be needed for the additional cases. The potential 
impact on State's Attorneys related to the provisions of failure to report is u ndeterminable since it is not possible to 
estimate the number of the cases that would be prosecuted. 

3. State fiscal effect detail :  For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget . 



• 

• 

• 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected . 

The fiscal impact for the Department of Human Services for the 201 3-201 5 biennium would be the cost for 2 FTE to 
handle the increased number of intakes that would be received. Costs for the biennium total $431 , 1 1 6  and are 
comprised of: salary and benefits for 2 FTE $338,549, operating costs for travel, rent, office supplies, and 
communication $52,567, and IT costs for maintenance of a database reporting system $40,000. The fiscal impact for 
DHS for the 201 5-20 1 7  biennium would be $422,468. This reflects the removal of one-time costs for office furniture 
and equipment that would occur in the 201 3-20 1 5  biennium. 

C.  Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The funding needed to perform the requirements provided for in SB 2323 are not included in the Department of 
Human Services appropriation bil l  (HB 1 0 1 2) ,  therefore DHS would need a general fund appropriation of $43 1 , 1 1 6  
for the 201 3-201 5 biennium and $422,468 for the 201 5-201 7  biennium. 

Name: Debra A. McDermott 

Agency: Department of Human Services 

Telephone: 701 -328-1 980 

Date Prepared: 03/1 8/201 3 



Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2323 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0210412013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 't' t'' t d  d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tcJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $1,611,771 
Appropriations $1,611,771 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$1,577,179 
$1,577,179 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The bill will require mandatory reporting of abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult and provide a penalty. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 subsection 1 of the bill requires mandatory reporting by any medical or mental health professional or 
personnel, law enforcement officer, firefighter, member of the clergy, financial service provider, attorney or caregiver 
having reasonable cause to believe a vulnerable adult has been subjected to abuse or neglect. Section 1 subsection 
2 provides for voluntary reporting by any person not required to report under subsection 1 .  For the first four months 
of SFY 201 3, 3 1 6  referrals have been received. It is estimated that under this bill, referrals would increase by 70%, 
based on similar legislation that was implemented in South Dakota. With a 70% increase, the estimated annual 
number of referrals could be 1 ,6 1 2 .  It is estimated that, at a minimum, this would require 1 FTE to be located in each 
of the eight regions. of the state for a total of 8 FTE. The potential impact on State's Attorneys related to the 
provisions on failure to report is undeterminable since there is no way to estimate the number of the cases that 
would be prosecuted. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The fiscal impact for the Department of Human Services for the 201 3-1 5 biennium would be the cost for 8 FTE to 
handle the increased number of referrals that would be received. Salary and fringe for 8 FTE would total 
$ 1 ,354, 1 97. Operating costs for travel, rent, office supplies, communications would total $21 7,574. IT costs for 



maintenance ofdatabase reporting system would total $40,000. Total cost for the 2013-15 biennium would total 
$1,611,771. The fiscal impact for DHS for the 2015-2017 biennium would be $1,577,179. This reflects the removal of 
one-time costs for office furniture and equipment that would occur in 2013-15 biennium. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

The funding needed to perform the requirements provided for in SB 2323 are not included in the Department of 
Human Services appropriation bill (HB 1 012), therefore DHS would need a general fund appropriation of $1 ,611, 771 
for the 2013-15 biennium and $1,577,179 for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Name: Debra A. McDermott 

Agency: Department of Human Services 

Telephone: 701-328-1980 

Date Prepared: 02/05/2013 
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Title. 04000 

Adopted by the Judiciary Committee 

April 1 ,  20 1 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO E NGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 2323 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 9,  remove "financial service provider," 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 7 ,  remove "section :"  

Page 1 , remove l ines 18 through 20 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 1 , replace "b. "Medical" with "subsection, "medical" 

Page 2, l ine 5, after "£." i nsert "A report, if required by section 25-0 1 .3-04, satisfies all reporting 
requirements of this chapter. 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 1 3, replace "�" with "4."  

Ren um ber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 .0803. 03002 
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Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Kim Koppelman Rep. Lois Delmore 
Vice Chairman Lawrence Klemin Rep. Ben Hanson 
Rep. Randy Boehning Rep. Kathy Hogan 
Rep. Roger Brabandt 
Reg. Karen Karls 
Rep. Will iam Kretschmar 
Rep. Diane Larson 
Rep. Andrew Maragos 
Rep. Gary Paur 
Rep. Vicky Steiner 
Rep. Nathan Toman 

Total (Yes) ___________ 
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_____________ _ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
April 2, 2013 8:39am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_58_003 
Carrier: Hogan 

Insert LC: 13.0803.03002 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2323, as engrossed: Judiciary Committee (Rep. K. Koppelman, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (9 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2323 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  line 9, remove "financial service provider." 

Page 1 ,  line 1 7, remove "section:" 

Page 1 ,  remove lines 18 through 20 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 1 ,  replace ".!L "Medical" with "subsection. "medical" 

Page 2, line 5, after "2." insert "A report. if required by section 25-01 . 3-04. satisfies all 
reporting requirements of this chapter. 

Page 2, line 1 3, replace "�" with "4." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMIITEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_58_003 



2013 TESTIMONY 

SB 2323 



Testi mo ny for 2323 63rd sess ion Ad u lt a b use and  neglect 

M r. Cha irma n, members of the co m m ittee, I am Senator P h i l  M u rphy fro m Distr ict 

20.  

I sta nd befo re you today beca use I was d ismayed to fi nd out ea r l ier  th is  yea r  that 

N D  is  an o utl ier  i n  te rms of m a ndato ry report ing of a bu se or  neglect of an e lder. 

A long with us, o n ly Colo ra d o  d oes n ot m a n date re port ing  of t h is natu re .  You may 

a l l  know that a b use o r  negl ect of ch i l d re n  in  th is  state does necess itate re porti ng. 

I ,  myse lf, as  a teacher  face cri m i na l  charges if I have reason to be l ieve a ch i ld  has  

been ma ltreated a nd I do  not report i t .  I fi nd it d ifficu lt to u nd e rsta nd why we in  

ND wou l d  not affo rd the same meas u re of  respect to o u r  e l d e r  c it izens .  Th is b i l l  

is  i ntended t o  protect o u r  e l derly a nd the people w h o  wou l d  re port the i r  a buse by 

givi n g  i m m u n ity to a nyone reporti ng in good fa ith . Seco n d a ri ly, it  wou l d  br ing N D  

i nto a p l ace i n  o u r  U n ited States where we wi l l  not be the s u bject of r id icu le .  I 

ta ke offe nse to the n ot ion  that we here ca re less a bout o u r  e l ders than  other  

states, but  our  cu rre nt statutes i n  th is  rega rd certa i n ly i nvite t h at c h a rge . 

I n  the 35 yea rs of my teach i ng, I reca l l  a few times, perha ps a s  m a ny as  7 o r  8, 
whereby I n otified o u r  school  cou nse lor, pr inci pa l or  su pt. of my concerns fo r a 

stu d e nt a n d I fe lt good knowing I had  done my d uty as  req u i red . H oweve r, to 

a l lay fea rs of cri m i na l i z i n g  people who do not report, I have d ra fted the b i l l  so 

that the pena lty is  not a cr ime, but a n  i nfractio n .  

A s  m a n y  as  2 m i l l i o n  US cit izens  a re a bused i n  va r ious ways each yea r, the 

majo rity of cases a re at the ha nds of re latives or  oth e r  ca regivers - th is  a ccord i ng 

to the B i s m a rck Tri b u ne of l ast Tu esday, J a n  29 of 2013.  O u r  d e m ogra p h ics show 

that the n u m be r  of u s  65 a n d  ove r i s  p rojected to nea rly d o u b l e  by 2030 as  the 

b a by boo m e rs (born 1946-1964) age .  There a re 74 m i l l i o n  of us .  

I h ave m a ny m o re knowledgeab le  than  I to testify today o n  th is  i ssue,  but  I wo u ld 

l i ke to te l l  you that I have some a me n d m e nts to s u b m it, wh ich I w i l l  exp l a i n, as  

we l l  as  a p a ragra p h  fro m the med ica l  profess ion to  read to  you .  
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De�f Seh�t6r Mu�ki1;?-vesterdky·yoif:ask'edWfe :a·6a�i'�.:l)ilf'You'�\lere going to introduce re 
-. e}der,iabuse:. This .i s  <;ertainly an ar�a qfconcefri; sihce thete is aniricreasing number of vulnerable 

r adults hovtwith dementia or othe(togrtitive impairments: Furthermore, many of these folks are 
. ' .. beihg cared for at 'home. 

. ; .· . 

I spoke with a number of my colleagues irl Gra�d Fbrks th.is morning - an orthopedist, a rehab 
" ' physician, arid an emergency room doctor. Ail;Of us would support this type of legislation. Docs 

· working in emergency departments are perhaps the most l ikely to see cases where trauma is 
involved . . Issues o(chroriic neglect'and :deptivation might be inon� likely to be seen in the 

·• The attached article might
{;; ofsorh� 'lnterestto you. The last paragraph under the title 

"Background" lists mosto{the issues faced by doctors who see this type of thing. I thought this 
might beof ihterest to you) . ._,_ � 

-�·']im Brosseau, MD 
. Altru Clinic, Grand Forks -....... 



Ron Guggisberg 

District 11  

Test imony I n  Support Of SB2323 

Cha i rm a n  Hogue and Members of the Senate Jud ic ia ry Com mittee, 

I wou ld l i ke to express my support fo r th is legislation .  As a fi refighter I 

took a n  oath to protect l ives and  that is what th is b i l l  does. By requ i ring 

hea lth ca re workers and emergency responders to be mandatory 

reporters, it wi l l  ensu re the proper p rotections a re i n  p lace for 

vu l nera b le adu lts. It w i l l  a lso give responders c lea r d i rect ion a bo ut 

the i r  respons ib i l it ies when they witness a poss ib le  a buse s ituat ion .  

f 



Colorado should make reporting of elder abuse mandatory, Suthers 
says 
By John Suthers The Denver Post 
Posted: 

Re: "Improving Colorado in five easy (legislative) steps," Jan. 9 editorial. 

Denver Post. com 

The Denver Post editorial board laid out a plan for how to improve the state in five easy (legislative) 

steps. 

I'd like to suggest a sixth step is needed: mandatory reporting of elder abuse. 

Colorado is one of only three states that does not have a law specifically protecting our elder 

population from physical, sexual, caretaker and fmancial harm by requiring those in a position of 

awareness to report suspected abuse. 

Last year, our legislature created a task force to study the issue. It recommended a system of 

mandatory reporting for the mistreatment and exploitation of at-risk persons over 70 years of age. 

Gov. John Hickenlooper has dedicated $5 million to put into place the policies and procedures needed 

for adult protective services to be resourced appropriately to be effective. It is now time to move from 

studying the issue to acting on it by passing the upcoming legislation sponsored by state Sen. Evie 

Hudak, D-Westminster, state Rep. Sue Schafer, D-Wheat Ridge, and Rep. Amy Stephens, R­

Monument. Their efforts would commit the resources that Colorado's seniors need to help protect 

them from harm. 

Across the country, law-enforcement and social-services professionals see exploitation on the rise, 

and with an aging population, the problem will only grow with time. We also know that financial 

abuse is often a gateway to physical abuse. 
· 

Only with mandatory reporting of elder abuse can we create the necessary flow between those in 

social services, medical services, fmancial services, and law enforcement to be able to act and 

safeguard our at-risk elders. 

The January 20 1 3  issue of Consumer Reports cited a MetLife Mature Market Institute study that 

found, "in 1 07 cases, seniors lost an average of more than $ 1 45 ,000 from fraud committed by family, 

friends, caregivers and neighbors. "  And a survey by the Certified Financial Planner Board of 

Standards found that 56 percent of2,600 financial planners said they knew older clients who had been 

subject to unfair, deceptive or abusive practices. 

Twenty-five states now require fmancial institutions to report suspicious account activity involving 

seniors. And the American Bankers Association offers education to help employees identify the red 

flags that may signal financial abuse is occurring. As good corporate citizens interested in 

safeguarding their senior customers, that same model can be easily adopted by the financial 

community here. 

Much like children, our seniors are also a unique, at-risk group who are too often victimized. This is 

the year that the state needs to do its part to protect them. 

John Suthers, a Republican, is Colorado's attorney general. 

http ://www. denverpost. com/ opinion/ ci _ 2244 5 26 1 /protect -colorados-elderly-from-abuse 2/6/20 1 3  

I 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
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February 6, 201 3 

P ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2323 

Page 1 ,  line 9, remove "attorney," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 0, remove "or reasonable cause to believe" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 4 , after "agency" insert "if the knowledge is derived from information received by 
that person in that person's official or professional capacity. A member of the clergy, 
however, is not required to report the information if the knowledge is derived from 
information received in the capacity of spiritual adviser" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6 , after the third underscored comma insert "or" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 7 , remove ", or any officer or employee of a bank. credit un ion, or any other" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 8, remove "financial service provider" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 

{[) 



M r. Chairm a n  

Members o f  t h e  Committee 

My name is Cher  Meyer, I am from Thompson North Dakota a n d  l -a m  

here to testify o n  Senate b i l l  2323 . 

I be l ieve th is is b i l l  is vita l to every e lder  person and  the ir  fa mi l i es, i n  

every com m u n ity, to p rotect the rights a n d  safety our  e lder popu lat ion 

both now a n d  i n  the future. 

My background  is I ret i red from San D iego County Sheriff's Depa rtment 

i n  San D iego Ca l iforn ia after 20 yea rs, the last ten as a supervisor in  

Emergency Com m u n icat ions.  I a lso taught over 1000 Senior Vol u nteers 

for the depa rtment.  

North Dakota is one of two states that has no MAN DATORY report ing 

laws for e lder  a buse.  We need to change th is making the laws 

MANDATORY not vol u nta ry. When a nyth i ng is vol u ntary, there is n o  

requ i rement for a n  act ion . 

Not a l l  e lder  peop le l ive i n  n u rs ing homes or  have 

conservators/guard ians  to oversee the i r  phys ica l ca re or financi a l  

needs. Not a l l  e lder  a re d isab led .  The  people who a re i n  these 

categories have peop le  who ca re for the i r  physica l a nd financ ia l  

concerns and m ust fol low strict gu ide l i nes .  

R ight now for example, an e lder person can wa l k  i nto the i r  fin a nc ia l  

institut ion and  take out  $10,000 i n  cash and  a l l  they w i l l  be  asked is if 

they want a n  e nvelope for the ir  money. A week later that sa me  pe rson 

cou ld  ta ke a nother  $10,000 do l l a rs out a n d  NO O N E  wi l l  ask why they 

wou ld need th is m uch cash in such a short amount of t ime? Wou l d n't 



it seem that someone shou ld have or  cou ld  have suspected that 

someth ing was not right in this situat ion? As it stands right n ow, there 

is no MAN DATORY law requ i ri ng any report ing of th is type of s ituat ion !  

P lease do  N OT th i nk  th is  doesn't o r  can't happen  as I became awa re of 

th is very type of situation after the da mage was done to a fam i ly 

member. I was stu n ned that my adopted home state of North Da kota 

had NO MAN DATORY report ing laws. 

When I made i nqu i ries as  to why no one was ca l led to report someth ing 

wasn't q u ite right, I was told 11Wel l  she i s  such a n ice person, we d idn't 

want to get i nvolved, we thought someth ing wasn't right/' The n  I asked 

I/ a ren't you mandated reporters?" The a nswer was N O !  

E lder a buse h a s  many forms wh ich i nc lude physica l ,  mental ,  fi n ancia l, 

sexuat and  is one of the most u nder  reported crimes there is. 

Sometimes an e lder wi l l  mention in pass ing perhaps to the i r  doctor or a 

trusted friend  o r  a neighbor that someth ing isn't right. Too often o u r  

e lders concerns a re ignored beca use NO o n e  is req u i red t o  report a 

suspic ion of poss ib le  a buse. 

We need to br ing awa reness to th is a nd we m ust be the voice to 

requ i re MAN DATORY report ing.  A standard must be in  p lace so that we 

have mandated reporters who M UST report suspic ious activity or  

concerns when i t  comes to  our  e lder  popu lat ion without the fea r  of 

reta l iation so that it can be i nvestigated completely. 

We must p rotect our  e lder  popu lat ion now and  in the future .  O u r  

state i s  growing; the popu lat ion age wi l l  conti nue to increase. I f  we 

make MAN DATORY reporting a nd have mandated reporters then 

financia l i nstitutes, docto rs, l aw enforcement, c lergy and others wi l l  be  



requ i red to report a ny suspicions of fi na nc ia l  or  any other type of e lder  

a b use. O u r  e lder  popu lation deserves honor  and respect yet 

sometimes they a re mistreated or forgotten or sometimes the s ituat ion 

they a re in gets ignored .  These a re the people who ra ised us and they 

deserve to be ca red for a nd p rotected in  a dign ified manner. We 

o u rselves a re going to a n  e lder someday wou ldn't you want the same 

protect ion of MAN DATORY reporting? 

The elder pop u lat ion ca n be vu lnerab le  and  easy ta rgets just l i ke o u r  

ch i l d ren .  W e  have s o  many laws that p rotect ou r ch i l d ren  a n d  have 

MAN DATORY report ing for suspic ions that i nvolve ch i ld ren then why 

a ren't we givi ng the same protections to our e lder  popu lation?  

Thank  you .  

Cher Meyer 

Thompson N O  58278 



Senate Human Services Committee 

February 6, 2013 
Testimony regard ing Ad u lt Protective Services 

Senate Bi l l  2323 
By Kim Jacobson, Director - Tra i l l  County Socia l Services 

Chairman Hogue a nd mem bers of the Senate Jud iciary Committee, my name is Kim Jacobson, 

Di rector of Tra i l l  County Socia l Services and member of the Region V Adu lt Protection Funding 

Comm ittee. I speak in support of Senate Bi l l  2323.  

The North Dakota legislature took a n  im portant step during the last bienn ium by appropriating a 

study to further understand the needs of vulnerable adu lts. The study, com pleted Winsor Schm itt, 

revealed many areas in which North Dakota could improve in protecting and serving vulnerable 

popu lations. Mr. Schm itt's report recommended "North Dakota should change from vo luntary reporting 

of abuse or neglect to mandatory reporting of abuse or neglect." Senate Bil l 2323 sets th is 

recommendation in motion and helps define North Dakota a better p lace for vu lnerable adu lts. 

North Dakota is one of only two states without mandatory reporting of vulnerable adu lt 

abuse and neglect. It is important to note that North Da kota does have mandatory reporting laws for 

suspected chi ld abuse and neglect. Mandatory reporting of abuse of vulnerable adu lts would be 

very effective if a pproached in a s imi lar manner. 

Current chi ld protection law req uires mandatory reporters to report suspected abuse or neglect. It is 

not the ro le of the reporter to confirm the abuse/neglect on ly to report suspected concerns. It is 

through proper assessment and investigation by qua l ified professionals ( law enforcement, chi ld 

protection socia l  workers/team, etc. )  that the report is  substantiated . The identity of the 

reporter is kept confidential un less ordered by a court of law. These items ensure a safety net for both 

the a l leged victim and the reporter. These practices would be very effective if incorporated into 

mandatory reporting law for abuse/neglect of vulnerable adu lts. 

Whi le we would all love to say that North Dakota is a safe place to l ive and we take good care of our 

vulnerable adult populations, th is  is not a lways the case. Abuse and neglect of North Dakota citizens 

@ 



happens each day. Our cu rrent system fa lls seriously short in offering protections, consequences, 

resources, and safety nets for aiding this population group.  Fact is, our state is changing da i ly. Abuse 

and neglect can occur in many ways including financial exploitation, physical a buse, sexua l  a buse, 

emotiona l  maltreatment, neglect, and self-harm. It happens in North Dakota. 

The legislative body, public servants, individuals identified as  mandatory reporters, and  citizens a l l  

have a role to help protect our vu lnerable populations. SB 2323 sets the stage for mandatory reporting 

of suspected abuse of vulnerable adu lts. We ca nnot wait another year or  unti l  the next legislative 

session to provide protections for our vulnerable. 

It is important to note that SB 2323 is part of an entire system of needed reform for vu lnerable adu lt 

services. Partner bi l ls :  SB 2195 (adult protective services funding), H B  1041 (grants for guardianship 

services), HB  1040 ( rights of potential wards), SB 2345 (defin ition and pena lty of exploitation of 

vulnerable adu lt), and HB 1012 (N DDHS budget) serve as a cohesive body for provid ing an  appropriate 

system for improving services and protections to vulnerable adu lts. Systemic change is needed. 

This is a critica l time in North Dakota history. There is an  opportun ity today for each of you to play a 

vita l  role in ensuring protections for North Da kota vulnerable adults. I urge you to take th is time to 

seek to understand the facts, the need to protect vulnerable adu lts, and to commit to a statewide 

system to susta in those efforts. 

I u rge you to give Senate Bi l l  2323 a "Do PASS" recommendation. 

.3 





582323 
Testimony of Gretchen Dobervich, Alzheimer's Association MN NO 
February 6,  2013 
Q hat "r tv"M n th � 4 e. 
Cl Jail vvu1 1 idi 1 Lee, Members of the Committee, my name is Gretchen Dobervich and on 
behalf of the Alzheimer's Association MN NO I am here today to testify in support of 
Senate Bil l 2323, which calls for the mandatory reporting of abuse and neglect of 
vulnerable adults in North Dakota. 

The population served by the Alzheimer's Association MN NO is a vulnerable population 
and is at increased risk for exploitation, abuse and self neglect throughout the disease 
process. One in four of the 1 9,000 North Dakotans with Alzheimer's disease live alone, 
many in rural, isolated areas. Mandated reporting of abuse and neglect would provide 
an additional layer of support and safety for them. 

Vulnerable persons who are victims of abuse and neglect may not report the · 

maltreatment in fear of retaliation or concern that any assistan9e they are being 
provided will cease and they wil l no longer be able to live at home or may lack the 
capacity to recognize the abuse and neglect and/or tell anyone it is occurring. 
Mandated reporting by professionals who interact with vulnerable adults would provide 
a means of protection and advocacy for them that may lessen fear and increase the 
likelihood that action wil l  be taken before further abuse arid neglect can occur. 

SB2323 would mandate all North Dakota's adults who are vulnerable and in suspected 

abusive or neglectful situations would be covered. Current mandates exist for persons 
with developmental disabilities, mental i l lness, victims of domestic violence and 
residents of long term care facilities. 

The Alzheimer's Association MN NO sugg_ests the addition of protection for reporters 
who make a report in good faith and prohibits retaliation towards reporters who have 
made a report in good faith. Clearly defining the time period a report must be made in 
such as immediately or within 24 hours versus "a reasonable amount of time" gives 
vulnerable adult reporting the sense of urgency and seriousness that victims deserve. 

Thank you for the opportunity to express the Alzheimer's Association MN NO's support 
for a Do Pass of S82323. 





Financial Exploitation can 
happen to anyone. 

ABUSERS CHARM . THEY P"RESSURE .  
They may even s;:iy they're 

doing you a favor. 

PROTECT YOU RS E LF : 
• Get to know you r  banker. Bui ld a relationship with 

the people who handle your finances so they can be 
on the lookout for any suspicious activity related to 
your account. 

• Plan ahead to protect your assets and to ensure that 
your wishes are followed. Talk to your banker, an 
attorney or financ!al advisor about the best 
options for you. 

• You have the right not to be threat�ned or i ntimidated .  
If  someone close to you i s  trying to take control of 
your finances, talk to someone you trust. 

• Check references and credentials of anyone who 
wants to do work in your home. 

• Sign your own checks. Do not sign "blank checks" 
where another person can· fill in the amount.  (If you 
need someone to help you write checks before 
you sign, ask a third party to review the check and 
take it to the bank.)  

• Consult with a financial advisor or attorney before 
signing any document you don't understand. 

• Never get rushed into a deal . Ask for details in 
writing . 

• Pay with checks and credit cards rather than cash to 
keep a paper trai l .  

• Use Direct Deposit. 

• Do not lend money in return for a general promissory 
note. 

• Feel free to say "no." After al l ,  it's you r  money. 

tfPJ 
BaNKeRs 
A S  S 0 C t A T  I 0 f\1 

If you or someone you know is being financially exploited 
or if you have any questions or concerns, please contact 

your local banker. They will be able to assist you. 



Senate J u d ici a ry Co m m ittee 
S ixty-Th i rd Leg is lative Asse m bly of N o rth Da kota 

Senate B i l l  N o .  2323 
Fe bru a ry 6,  20 1 3  

Good morn i ng ,  Cha i rm a n  H og u e a n d  Mem bers of the Sen ate J u d icia ry 

Com m ittee : I a m  David Boeck, a State e m pl oyee a nd l a wyer fo r the 

Protection & Advocacy Proj ect .  The Protection & Advocacy Proj ect is  a n  

i n d ependent sta te agency th at acts to protect peop le  w ith d isa b i l it ies from 

a b u se,  neg lect, a n d  exploitati o n ,  a n d  advocates fo r the d isa b i l i ty-re lated 

rig hts of people with d isa b i l it ies.  

The Protection & Advocacy Project su pports the concept of m a ndatory 

re porti ng of a buse a n d  neg lect of vu l nera b le a d u lts . It l i ke l y  is essenti a l  to 

a n  effective system to protect v u l nera b l e  a d u lts .  Sti l l ,  the Protection & 

Advocacy Project has rese rvati ons a bout Sen ate Bi l l  2 3 2 3 .  

-+ The Vu l nera b le  Ad u l t  Protective Services syste m wou l d  have g reat 

d ifficu lty i m p l e menting th is  law,  u n less Sen ate Bi l l  2 1 9 5  a lso becomes 

l aw so the present V u l n e rab le  Ad u lt Protective Services system wo u l d  

have adeq u ate resou rces to receive a l l  the reports a n d  protect the 

v u l n e ra b l e  ad u lts who a re the s u bjects of those reports. M a n datory 

reporti n g  w o u l d  l i ke ly  s i g n ifica ntly i ncrease the workloa d .  

If Senate B i l l  2 1 9 5  a n d  Senate Bi l l  2 1 9 5  beco m e  l a w ,  it l i ke ly w i l l  

ta ke some sta rt u p  t ime t o  p u t  a n  expa n d ed Vu l ne ra bl e  Ad u lt 

Protective Services syste m i n  p lace .  It m i g h t  be a dvisa b l e  to have a n  
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i m med ia te im plementation date fo r Senate B i l l  2 1 9 5  a n d  a d elayed 

i m plementation date fo r Senate Bi l l  2 3 2 3 .  

The statute that m a n d ates reporti ng of ch i l d  a b u se a n d  neg lect 

provides a n  exe m ption fo r c lergy who g a i n  knowledge or d evelop a 

suspic ion w h i l e  acti ng as a "spi ritu a l  advisor . " Senate B i l l  2 3 2 3  

m a nd ates that c lergy  re port a b use and neg l ect o f  v u l n e ra bl e  a d u lts b u t  

has no s i m i l a r  exem ption . 

Senate B i l l  2 3 2 3  would req u i re attorneys to report knowledge o r  

suspic ion o f  a buse a n d  neglect of v u l nera b l e  a d u lts tho u g h  t h e  N o rth 

Da kota S u preme Cou rt reg u lates the con d u ct of atto rneys in the 

practice of law . The R u l es of Profession a l  Cond u ct pro m u l gated by the 

Cou rt a d d resses confidentia l ity i n  severa l respects . 

The ob l igat ions that Senate B i l l  2 3 2 3  wou l d  i m pose confl i ct with 

some obl igations attorneys m u st fo l low u n d e r  the R u l es of Profession a l  

Cond uct .  For exa m ple,  the Ru les of  Professiona l  Co n d u ct p recl u d e  a n  

attorney fro m d isclos ing i nfo rmation about possi b le  a b use o r  negl ect 

when the attorney is represe nti ng the person s u s pected of 

perpetrati n g  that a b use or neg lect. 

Tha n k  you . P lease let me know if you have q u estion s .  

Page N o .  2 
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1 3.0586.01 000 

Sixty-th ird 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Senators Luick, J. Lee, Robinson 

SENATE BILL NO. 2195 

Representatives Fehr, Hogan, Mooney 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the department of human services for adult 

protective services. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF N ORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  APPROPRIATION. - DEPARTMENT OF H UMAN S E RVICES - ADULT 

PROTECTIVE SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the general fund in the 

state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $ 1 ,650,000, or so much of the sum as 

may be necessary, to the department of human services for the purpose of providing adult 

protective services, including the assessment of the needs of vulnerable individuals, 

identification of alternatives to guardianship resources, for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 3, 

and ending June 30, 201 5. The department of human services may contract for the provision of 

these services . 
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February 6, 20 1 3  

Senate Judiciary Committee 

Senate Bill  No. 2323 

CHAIRMAN HOGUE AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS : 

I ' m  Bill  Neumann, Executive Director of the State Bar Association of North 

Dakota. The Bar Association has no problem with the general idea of mandatory 

reporting of adult abuse, but we must oppose the inclusion of attorneys as 

mandated reporters. I know the bil l ' s  sponsors only want to do what's  best for 

vulnerable adults, but requiring lawyers to report client confidences strikes at the 

very heart of the attorney-client relationship. 

The one thing everybody who hires a lawyer knows is that the things I tell  

my lawyer are held in strictest confidence. Every client relies on that 

confidentiality as the foundation of the relationship they have with their attorney. 

Without that confidentiality, clients cannot tell their lawyers the things their 

lawyers need to know in order to give good, competent advice. S .B .  2323 
mandates disclosure of those confidences; it requires a breach of the attorney-client 

relationship. 

Let's  assume my client comes to me and says he wants to give his entire 
farm to his son, and wants to tum over control of all his bank accounts and other 
assets, too. Let 's  assume I know the son recently moved back in with my client 

after being away for years, and that the son never had a close relationship with his 
father. And let 's  assume my client also has a daughter who lives in a neighboring 

state. 

Under the current law I ' m  not mandated to report this situation, but I can 

report it if I think my client is a vulnerable adult being subjected to financial 

exploitation. But if S. B. 2323 becomes law as it' s presently written, I will be 

forced to report that situation. That means my client and his son will know what 

they tell me will not be confidential, and it therefore means the client and his son 
are not going to come to me to arrange the transfers the son wants. It means the 

son will seek out someone who is not l icensed to practice law, someone who is  not 

a mandated reporter, someone who is willing to commit the unauthorized practice 

• of law to arrange these transfers. 
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A law that requires lawyers to divulge our clients ' confidences will actually 
provide our clients less protection from exploitation than they presently have. I 
ask you to delete the word "attorney" from line 9 of this bill. If you do that, we 
will still be covered by the next section of the law as permissible reporters, and we 
will still have the option of acting to protect our clients when we believe it is 
necessary. 

If you have any questions, I will try to answer them. 
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63rd Legislative Assem bly of North Dakota 

Testimony i n  Su pport of SB 2323 
North Da kota Medica l Association 

6 February 2013 

Cha irman Hogue and Members of the Senate J udic iary Committee:  

I a m  Dr.  M ichael  Booth, a pra cticing ca rd iovascu lar  and thoracic surgeon i n  
B ismarck a nd current president of the North Da kota Medical  Association, who I 
a m  representi ng today. 

O u r  organ i zation rises to spea k in favor of this b i l l  and recommends a "Do Pass" 
from this  com mittee subject to the comments outl i ned below. 

We do support m a ndatory reporting of the suspected a buse a n d/or neglect of 
vu ln era ble a d u lts, who have previously been i n  the North Da kota Century Code .  
F o r  us as  medica l  providers this i s  a logica l extension of o u r  ma ndate t o  report 
a buse a nd neglect for ch i l d ren.  

We u ndersta nd that  the reporting process does not mean a n  a utomatic cri m i na l  
i nvestigation of the i nd ividua ls  i n  q uestion,  but rather the i n it iation of a process 
to eva l u ate a n d  potentia l ly i ntervene in a situation where a b use or n eglect has  
become a concern.  Cri m i n a l  cha rges would on ly  be one potenti a l  outcome, a nd 
hopefu l ly i nfrequently req u i red.  Based on our state's 20 p lus  yea rs of experience 
i n  i nvestigating ch i ld  a buse, we bel ieve that this process may be i m plemented 
smoothly and fo r the benefit of a l l .  

The issue of fi nanc ia l  a buse o r  neglect is  not cu rrently part of the process that we 
a s  medica l  providers have dealt with in  situations of chi ld a buse, but we do 
a ppreciate its i m porta nce in vul nera ble  adu lts . While we wou l d  certa i n ly 
encourage our col l eagues to report fi nancia l  issues if they fee l  it i s  a ppropri ate, 
the a mendment to l i n e  14 proposed by Senator M u rphy wou l d  certa i n ly be 
a ccepta b le  to us to a l lay a ny concerns that we might be obl igated to i nvestigate a 
given patient's fin a ncia l  c ircu msta nces as a matter of course. 
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We do be l ieve that the Century Code does provide a n  adequate defin it ion for 
abuse an d neglect to serve as the basis of this b i l l .  

W e  a l so bel ieve that t h e  Century Code adequately defi nes t h e  vu lnerab le  a d u lt .  
We wou l d  encou rage you to  NOT add an age (other tha n majority) to  the 
defi n it ion of a vu l nera bl e  adu lt. (As the father of an autistic chi ld who wou l d  
pote nti a l ly b e  vul nera ble  a t  a ny t ime after h i s  18th birthday, t h i s  speaker i s  
especi a l ly concerned a bout th is  point. )  

We wou l d  req uest that language be incl uded as a n  amendment to th is  b i l l  to hold 
the i ndividua l  or entity reporting a suspected a buse or neglect case harmless from 
civi l or  cri m i n a l  l i a b i l ity if the report has been made in  good fa ith . We wou l d  a l so 
prefer that the report ing individua l  be de-identified i n  any proceedi ngs 
u ndertake n  to investigate these reports. 

Added fo l lowi ng the hearing: 

We agree with the concerns voiced by the North Da kota Bar Association 
concerning ma ndatory reporting for attorneys. Cu rrent law should be adequate 
to prosecute attorneys who a re com pl icit i n  fi na ncia l abuse or neglect.  

The issue is  more problematic for fi nancia l  service professionals . We wou ld  l eave 
t hat to you r  d iscretion.  

We wo uld a l so u rge that SB 2 195, which fu nds the depa rtment of h u m a n  services 
to a d m i n ister these services for vul nerab le  adu lts, be enacted a nd fu l ly fu nded.  

Respectfu l ly submitted, 

A.  M ichael  Booth M D  PhD FACS 
President, North Da kota M edical Association 
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1 3.0803.02004 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Murphy 

February 1 5, 201 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2323 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 0, remove "or reasonable cause to believe" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 4, after "agency" insert "if the knowledge is derived from information received by 
that person i n  that person's official or professional capacity. A member of the clergy, 
however, is n ot required to report the information if the knowledge is derived from 
information received in the capacity of spiritual adviser" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 
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Senate Appropriations Committee 

February 18, 2013 

Testimony rega rding Mandatory Reporting for Vulnerable Adult Protection and  Related Fisca l Note 

Senate Bi l l  2323 

By Kim Jacobson, Director - Tra i l l  County Social  Services 

Cha irman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my name is Kim 

Jacobson .  I am the Director of Tra i l  I Cou nty Socia l Services located in  H i l lsboro, North Dakota. I am a lso 

a member of the Region V Ad ult Protection Funding Committee and North Dakota County Socia l  Service 

Director Association. I speak in support of Senate Bi l l  2323.  

The North Dakota Legislature took an important step during the last bie n n ium by appropriating a 

6y 
study to further understand the  needs of  vulnerable adu lts. The study, com pleted Winsor Schmitt, 

revea led many a reas in which North Dakota could improve in protecting and serving vul nerable 

popu lations. M r. Schm itt's report recommended "North Dakota shou ld  change from vol unta ry reporting 

of abuse or neglect to mandatory reporting of abuse or neglect." Senate B i l l  2323 sets this 

recommendation in motion and includes an appropriation to ensure adequate im plementation. This 

would help define North Dakota a better place for vu lnerable adults. 

North Dakota is one of on ly two states without ma ndatory reporting of vu lnerable ad ult 

abuse and neglect. It is important to note that North Dakota does have mandatory reporting laws for 

suspected chi ld abuse a nd neglect. Mandatory reporting of abuse of vul nerab le  adu lts would be 

very effective if a pproached in a s imi lar  manner. 

Current chi ld protection law requ i res mandatory reporters to report suspected abuse or neglect. It is 

not the role of the reporter to confirm the abuse/neglect on ly to report suspected concerns. It is 

through proper assessment and investigation by qual ified professionals ( l aw enfo rcement, child 

protection social workers/team, etc.) that the report is substantiated .  The identity of the 

reporter is kept confidential  un less ordered by a court of law. These items ensure a safety net for both 

the a l leged victim a nd the reporter. These practices would be very effective if incorporated into 

mandatory reporting law for abuse/neglect of vulnerable adu lts. 



While we would a l l  love to say that North Da kota is a safe p lace to l ive and we take good ca re of our 

vu lnerable adu lt populations, this is not always the case . Abuse and neglect of North Da kota citizens 

happens each day. Our current system fa l ls seriously short in offering protections, consequences, 

resources, and safety nets for aiding this popu lation group.  Fact is, our  state is changing da i ly. Abuse 

and neglect ca n occur in many ways includ ing financial exploitation, physical abuse, sexua l  abuse, 

emotional  ma ltreatment, neglect, and self-harm. It happens in  North Dakota. 

The legislative body, publ ic servants, individ uals identified as ma ndatory reporters, and citizens a l l  

have a role to  he lp  protect our vulnerable popu lations. SB 2 3 2 3  sets the stage for mandatory reporting 

of suspected a buse of vulnerable adu lts. We ca nnot wait another  year or until the next legislative 

session to provide protections for our vu lnerable. 

It is important to note that the fiscal note in SB 2323 is key to success of this b i l l .  N DCC clea rly 

defines that the State is responsible for vulnera ble adult protection. The current appropriation for 

vulnerable adu lt  protective services is meager. Two western ND regions share a .25 FTE .  There are only 

3 . 2 5  FTES for the entire state with the exception of Region V. The counties in Region V (Cass, Richland, 

Ransom, Sa rgent, Steele and Tra i l l )  have actua l ly chosen to supplement the current state appropriation 

despite this being the responsibil ity of the State, as the need is so great. 

There are severa l b i l l s  before the legislative body that relate to the needs of vu lnerable individuals. 

There has been some confusion between the various bi l ls, the roles of each bi l l ,  a nd the fu nding for each 

bil l . P lease note there is not dup l ication of intent or fund ing between this bil l a n d  the fo l lowing bi l ls. HB 

1041 (grants for guard ia nship services), HB 1040 ( rights of potential wa rds), SB 2 345 (defin ition and 

pena lty of exploitation of vu lnerable adult), and HB 1012 {NDDHS budget) serve together as a cohesive 

body for providing a n  a ppropriate system for improving services and protections to vu lnerable 

adu lts. 

G uardianship and adu lt protective services a re very d ifferent from each other .  Ad ult protective 

services can be l ikened to chi ld protection services. Both assess/eva luate reports or concerns to see if 
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abuse/neglect has occurred and if intervention is needed. The d ifference is the ch i ld  protection is for 

ch i ld ren.  Ad ult protective services a re for vu lnerable adults. The d ifference is t here is very l ittle current 

funding for adu lt protective services and there is no mandatory reporting laws un l ike ch i ld protection in  

North Dakota. Senate B i l l  2323  seeks to strengthen the protections for the  e lderly and d isabled.  

Guardianship ca n be compared to foster care.  Both are a method of provid ing a high leve l of 

req uired safety intervention under sign ifica nt cases of proven abuse/neglect. Both foster care and adu lt 

guardianship require action of the Court in order to be implemented . Foster ca re is a sign ificant safety 

intervention for chi ldren .  Guardianship is a significant safety intervention for vu lnerable adu lts. Both 

foster care and guardianship can be accompl ished with the assistance of fam ily ca regivers, agency 

ca regivers, or institutions. Aga in, the difference is that there is very l ittle avai lab le fu nd ing to assist with 

adu lt gua rd ianships in the NO system .  I n  foster care, the state, counties, and fed era l government a l l  

share th is  expense. Ad ult guardianship is being addressed in the other b i l ls previously mentioned this 

session. 

This is a critica l t ime in North Dakota history. There is an opportun ity today for each of you to play a 

vita l role in ensuring protections for North Dakota vulnerable adu lts. I urge you to take this time to 

seek to understand the facts, the need to protect vulnerable adu lts, and to com mit to a statewide 

system to fina ncia l ly support efforts to protect North Dakota's adu lt vulnerables. 

I urge you to give Senate Bi l l  2323 a "Do PASS" recommendation .  Thank you for you r  consideration .  



63rd Legis lative Assembly  of N o rth Da kota 

Testi mony i n  Su pport of SB 2323 
N o rth Da kota M e d i ca l  Associat ion 

6 Febru a ry 2013 

C h a i r m a n  Hogue a n d M e m be rs of the Sen ate J u d ic i a ry Com mitte e :  

I a m  D r .  M ic h a e l  Booth, a practic ing card i ova scu l a r  a n d  thorac ic  s u rgeo n  i n  
B i s ma rck a n d  cu rre nt p res ident of t h e  N o rth Da kota M ed i ca l  Associat ion,  who I 
a m  re present ing  today.  

O u r  o rga n i zati o n  r ises to spe a k  in  favor of th is  b i l l  and reco m m e nd s  a " D o  Pass" 
from th is com m ittee s u bject to the com m ents o u t l i ned below. 

We do s u p po rt m a ndatory reporti ng  of the s u spected a buse a nd/or neglect of 
v u l n era b l e  a d u lts, who have previous ly been in the N o rth Da kota Ce ntu ry Code .  
For  u s  a s  med ica l  providers th is  i s  a l ogica l exte ns ion  of o u r  m a n d ate t o  re port 
a bu s e  a n d  n eg lect fo r ch i l d re n .  

W e  u nd e rsta n d  that t h e  reporti ng process d o e s  n ot m e a n  a n  a uto matic cri m i na l  
i nvestigat ion of t h e  i n d ivid u a ls in  q uest ion,  b u t  rat h e r  t h e  i n it iat ion of a p rocess 
to eva l uate a nd pote ntia l ly  inte rve n e  in a s ituat ion w h e re a bu s e  or  n eg lect has  
become a con ce rn . Cri m i na l  charges wo uld  o n ly be o n e  pote ntia l  o utco me,  a n d 
h o pefu l ly i nfre q u e ntly req u i re d .  Based on o u r  state's 20 p lus  y e a rs of exper ie nce 
in i nvestigat i n g  ch i l d  a buse, we bel ieve that t h i s  p rocess may b e  i m pl e m e nted 
s moothly and for t h e  benefit of a l l .  

T h e  issue o f  fi n a ncia l  a buse o r  neglect i s  not cu rrently pa rt of t h e  p rocess that we 
a s  med ical  p rovi d e rs have dea lt with in s ituat ions  of ch i l d  a buse ,  but we d o  
a pp reciate its i m porta nce i n  vu l ne ra bl e  a d u lts .  W h i l e  w e  wou l d  certa i n ly  
e ncou rage o u r  co l le a gu es to report fi nanci a l  i ssues if they fee l  it is a ppro p riate, 
the a me n d me nt to l i n e  14 proposed by Senator M u rp hy wou ld  certa i n ly be 
a cce pta b l e  to u s  to a l lay a ny conce rns that we m ight be o b l igated to i nvestigate a 
g ive n patie nt's fi na nc i a l  ci rcu m sta nces as a matte r  of cou rse.  
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We d o  bel ieve that the Ce ntu ry Cod e d oes provide a n  adeq uat e  d efi n it ion fo r 
a bu se a nd neglect to se rve as  the bas is  of this  b i l l .  

W e  a l so be l ieve that the Century Cod e a d eq uately d efines t h e  v u l nera ble a d u lt .  
We wou l d  e ncou rage you t o  N OT a d d  a n  age (other  than  majo rity) t o  the 
d efi n it ion  of a v u l n e ra ble a d u lt .  (As the father of an a utistic c h i l d  who wou ld  
potentia l ly be vu l nerab le  at a ny t ime after h i s  18th b i rthday, th i s  s pe a ker  is  
especia l l y  conce rned a bout this po i nt . )  

We wou l d  req u est t h at  l a ngu age be i n cl u ded as  a n  a mend ment to th is  b i l l  to ho ld  
the i n d ivid u a l  or  entity re port ing a suspected a b u se or  neglect case  ha rmless fro m 
civ i l  o r  cri m i na l  l i a bi l ity if the re port has been made i n  good fa ith . We wou l d  a l so 
p refe r that the re port i ng i n d ivid u a l  be de- identified in a ny procee d i ngs 
u nd e rta ken to investigate th ese reports. 

Added fo l lowing the hear ing :  

We agree with  the concerns voiced by the N o rth  Da kota Ba r Associat ion 
co nce r n i ng m a n datory report i ng for attorneys. Cu rre nt law s h o u l d  be adeq uate 
to prosecute attorn eys who a re com p l ic it  in fi na ncia l a b u se or neglect. 

The issue is  more problematic  fo r fi na ncia l service profess iona l s .  We wou ld leave 
that to you r  d iscret io n .  

W e  wou l d  a lso u rge that S B  2 195, which fu nds  t h e  d e p a rtment o f  h u m a n  services 
to a d m i n ister these services for v u l ne ra b le a d u lts, be enacted a nd fu l ly  fu nded . 

Respectfu l ly s u b mitted, 

A.  M ichae l  Booth M D  P h D  FACS 
P res ident, N orth D a kota M ed ica l Association 
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February 1 8 , 20 1 3  

Senate Appropriations Committee 

Senate Bil l  No. 2323 

CHAIRMAN HOLl\1BERG AND COMMITTEE MEl\1BERS : 

I ' m  Bill  Neumann, Executive Director of the State Bar Association of North 
Dakota. The Bar Association has no problem with the general idea of mandatory 

reporting of adult abuse, but we must oppose the inclusion of attorneys as 

mandated reporters. Requiring lawyers to report client confidences strikes at the 

very heart of the attorney-client relationship. 

Everybody knows the things they tell  their lawyer are confidential; that 

confidentiality is the foundation of the attorney-client relationship. Without 
confidentiality, clients cannot tell their lawyers what lawyers need to know to give 

good, competent advice. S .B .  2323 mandates disclosure of client confidences;  it 

requires a breach of the attorney-cl ient relationship . 

What if my client suddenly wants to give his entire farm and all his assets to 

his son, who recently moved back in with his father after being away for years, and 

who has never had a close relationship with his father. And let 's  assume my client 

also has a daughter who lives in a neighboring state. 

Under current law I ' m  not mandated to report this situation, but I can report 

it if I think my client is a vulnerable adult being subj ected to financial exploitation. 

But if S .  B .  2323 becomes law, I will be forced to report that situation. That means 
my client and his son will know what they tel l  me will not be confidential, and 

therefore they are not going to come to me to arrange these transfers. It means the 
son will  find someone who is not licensed to practice law, and therefore not a 
mandated reporter, someone who is willing to commit the unauthorized practice of 

law to arrange these transfers. 

Requiring us to divulge our clients ' confidences actually gives our clients 
less protection from exploitation than they have now. If  the word "attorney" is  

deleted from line 9 of this bill, we wil l  stil l  be permissible reporters under the next 

section of the law, and we wil l  still  have the option of acting to protect our clients 
when we believe it is necessary. If you have any questions, I will  try to answer 

them. 

1 



(Three hole punch) 

Date: Februa ry 18,  2013 

Com mittee & Bi l l  No. :  Senate Appropriations 2323 

Chairman name & Committee Members: Ray Holmberg-Cha ir  

B i l l  L. Bowman-Co-Vice Chairman 

Tony G rind berg-Co-Vice Chairman 

Ron Carl isle 

Ralph Ki lzer 

Karen Krebsbach 

Gary A. lee 

Terry M Wanzek 

Tim Mathern 

David O'Conne l l  

larry Robinson 

John M. Warner 

My name is John Brown and I am the Executive Vice President for I ndependent Commun ity Banks of 

North Da kota ( ICBND) .  I am here to testify aga inst 2323 i n  its current form . When first introd uced by 

Senator Murphy he a lso proposed a n  amendment to remove lines 15-18 taking "financia l  institution 

providers" out of the bi l l .  Unfortunately, that's not how it came out of the Jud icia ry Committee. 

I wa nted to let you know that as part of the Federa l  USA Patriot Act, through the Financia l  Crimes 

Enforcement Network, known as FinCEN, financia l  institutions are required to report suspected 

activities that would include e lder financia l  exploitation. 

I found the fo l lowing example on  the FinCEN Network. "FinCEN data was critica l i n  identifying the 

d isposition  of a $20,000 withdrawal from a bank account of elderly persons. I nvestigators had ear l ier 

executed a sea rch warra nt for the records of the victims at the bank that had fi les the Currency 

Transaction Report, but the bank had inadvertently missed the transaction in question .  The d iscovery of 

the Currency Transaction resu lted in us urging the bank to complete its compl iance with the in itia l 

search warrant. Records perta in ing to the cash withdrawa l he lped a rrest the subject on charges of 

larceny tota l ing $2 18,000." 

Therefore, I u rge you not to include "financia l  institutions" in this legislation. Thank you .  

I would be  glad to  try a nd  a nswer a ny questions you may have ! 
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Department of the Treasury 
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network 

Advisory 

FIN-201 1-A003 

Issued: February 22, 201 1  

Subject: Advisory to Financial Institutions on Filing Suspicious Activity Reports 

Regarding Elder Financial Exploitation 

The Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (FinCEN) is issuing this advisory to assist 
the fmancial industry in reporting instances of financial exploitation of the elderly, a form 
of elder abuse. I Financial institutions can play a key role in addressing elder financial 
exploitation due to the nature of the client relationship. Often, fmancial institutions are 
quick to suspect elder financial exploitation based on bank personnel familiarity with 
their elderly customers. The valuable role fmancial institutions can play in alerting 
appropriate authorities to suspected elder financial exploitation has received increased 
attention at the state level; this focus is consistent with an upward trend at the federal 
level in Suspicious Activity Reports (SARs) describing instances of suspected elder 
financial exploitation. 2 Analysis of SARs reporting elder financial exploitation can 
provide critical information about specific frauds and potential trends, and can highlight 
abuses perpetrated against the elderly. 

This advisory contains examples of "red flags" based on activity identified by various 
state and federal agencies and provides a common narrative term that will assist law 
enforcement in better identifying suspected cases of financial exploitation of the elderly 
reported in SARs. 

Older Americans hold a high concentration of wealth as compared to the general 
population. In the instances where elderly individuals experience declining cognitive or 
physical abilities, they may fmd themselves more reliant on specific individuals for their 
physical well-being, fmancial management, and social interaction. While anyone can be 
a victim of a financial crime such as identity theft, embezzlement, and fraudulent 
schemes, certain elderly individuals may be particularly vulnerable. 

Potential Indicators of Elder Financial Exploitation 

The following red flags could indicate the existence of elder financial exploitation. This 
list of red flags identifies only possible signs of illicit activity. Financial institutions 

1 Abuse and exploitation of the elderly is statutorily defined at the state level. The National Center on 
Elder Abuse offers the following definition of exploitation as a type of elder abuse: "the illegal taking, 
misuse, or concealment of funds, property, or assets of a vulnerable elder." 
2 Bank Secrecy Act data reflects increasing use of terms related to elder financial exploitation/abuse in SAR 
narratives. 



should evaluate indicators of potential financial exploitation in combination with other 
red flags and expected transaction activity being conducted by or on behalf of the elder. 
Additional investigation and analysis may be necessary to determine if the activity is 
suspicious. 

Financial institutions may become aware of persons or entities perpetrating illicit activity 
against the elderly through monitoring transaction activity that is not consistent with 
expected behavior. In addition, financial institutions may become aware of such scams 
through their direct interactions with elderly customers who are being financially 
exploited. In many cases, branch personnel familiarity with specific victim customers 
may lead to identification of anomalous activity that could alert bank personnel to initiate 
a review of the customer activity. 

• Erratic or unusual banking transactions, or changes in banking patterns: 

o Frequent large withdrawals, including daily maximum currency 
withdrawals from an ATM; 

o Sudden Non-Sufficient Fund activity; 

o Uncharacteristic nonpayment for services, which may indicate a loss of 
funds or access to funds; 

o Debit transactions that are inconsistent for the elder; 

o Uncharacteristic attempts to wire large sums of money; 

o Closing of CDs or accounts without regard to penalties. 

• Interactions with customers or caregivers: 

o A caregiver or other individual shows excessive interest in the elder's 
finances or assets, does not allow the elder to speak for himself, or is 
reluctant to leave the elder' s side during conversations; 

o The elder shows an unusual degree of fear or submissiveness toward a 
caregiver, or expresses a fear of eviction or nursing home placement if 
money is not given to a caretaker; 

o The financial institution is unable to speak directly with the elder, despite 
repeated attempts to contact him or her; 

o A new caretaker, relative, or friend suddenly begins conducting financial 
transactions on behalf of the elder without proper documentation; 

o The customer moves away from existing relationships and toward new 
associations with other "friends" or strangers; 

o The elderly individual's financial management changes suddenly, such as 
through a change of power of attorney to a different family member or a 
new individual; 

2 



o The elderly customer lacks knowledge about his or her financial status, or 
shows a sudden reluctance to discuss financial matters. 

Suspicious Activity Reporting 

SARs continue to be a valuable avenue for fmancial institutions to report elder fmancial 
exploitation. Consistent with the standard for reporting suspicious activity as provided 
for in 3 1  CFR Part 1 03 (future 3 1  CFR Chapter X), if a fmancial institution knows, 
suspects, or has reason to suspect that a transaction has no business or apparent lawful 
purpose or is not the sort in which the particular customer would normally be expected to 
engage, and the financial institution knows of no reasonable explanation for the 
transaction after examining the available facts, including the background and possible 
purpose of the transaction, the fmancial institution should then file a Suspicious Activity 
Report. 3 

In order to assist law enforcement in its effort to target instances of financial exploitation 
of the elderly, FinCEN requests that financial institutions select the appropriate 
characterization of suspicious activity in the Suspicious Activity Information section of 
the SAR form and include the term "elder financial exploitation" in the narrative portion 
of all relevant SARs filed. The narrative should also include an explanation of why the 
institution knows, suspects, or has reason to suspect that the activity is suspicious. It is 
important to note that the potential victim of elder financial exploitation should not be 
reported as the subject of the SAR. Rather, all available information on the victim 
should be included in the narrative portion of the SAR. 

Elder abuse, including financial exploitation, is generally reported and investigated at the 
local level, with Adult Protective Services, District Attorney's offices, sheriffs offices, 
and police departments taking key roles. We emphasize that filers should continue to 
report all forms of elder abuse according to institutional policies and the requirements of 
state and local laws and regulations, where applicable. Financial institutions may wish to 
consider how their AML programs can complement their policies on reporting elder 
financial exploitation at the local and state level. 

Financial institutions with questions or comments regarding this Advisory should contact 
FinCEN's Regulatory Helpline at 800-949-2732. 

3 Financial institutions shall file with FinCEN to the extent and in the manner required a report of any 
suspicious transaction relevant to a possible violation of law or regulation. A financial institution may also 
file with FinCEN a Suspicious Activity Report with respect to any suspicious transaction that it believes is 
relevant to the possible violation of any law or regulation but whose reporting is not required by FinCEN 
regulations. See, e.g., 3 1  CFR § 103. 1 8(a) (future 3 1  CFR § 1 020.320(a)).  
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Test imony for 2323 63rd sess ion Ad u lt a buse a nd n eg lect 

M r. Cha i rm a n, m e m bers of the co mmittee, I a m  Se n ator P h i l  M u rp h y  from District 

20. 

I sta nd before yo u tod ay beca use I was d ismayed to fi nd out e a rl i e r  t h i s  yea r that 

N D  is  an outl i e r  in terms of mandatory reporti ng of a buse or neg lect of an e l der .  

A long with us, o n ly Colorado does not ma ndate re p o rt ing of th is  nature.  You may 

a l l  k n ow that a b u se or neglect of ch i l d re n  in th is  state d oes  necessitate re porti ng. 

I ,  myse lf, as a teacher  face cri m i n a l  cha rges if I have reason to b e l ieve a ch i l d  has 

been m a ltreated a nd I d o  not report it .  I fi nd it d ifficu lt to u nd e rsta n d  why we in  

ND w ou ld  not affo rd the same measu re of  respect to o u r  e lder  cit iz e n s .  This  b i l l  

is  i nten d ed to p rotect o u r  e ld er ly a nd the peop le  who wou l d report t h e i r  a b use by 

giv ing i m m u n ity to a nyone reporting i n  good fa ith .  Seco n d a ri l y, it wo u ld br i ng N D  

i nto a p l ace i n  o u r  U n ited States where w e  wi l l  n ot be t h e  s u bj e ct o f  r id icu l e .  I 

take offe nse to t h e  n ot ion that we here ca re less a bout o u r  e l d e rs t h a n  other  

states, but our  cu rrent statutes in  th i s  rega rd certa i n ly i nvite t h a t  cha rge.  

In  the 35 yea rs of my teach i ng, I reca l l  a few t imes, perha ps as m a ny a s  7 o r  8, 
whereby I n otif ied o u r  school cou nse lor, pr i nci pa l or s u pt .  of m y  concerns for a 

stud e nt and  I fe l t  good knowi ng I had d o n e  my d uty as  req u i red .  H owever, to 

a l lay fea rs of cri m i n a l i z i ng people who do n ot report, I have drafted the b i l l  so 

that the pena lty i s  not a cr ime, but an i nfractio n .  

As m a ny a s  2 m i l l i o n  US citizens a re a bused i n  va r ious  ways each yea r, the 

majo rity of cases a re at the ha nds of re latives o r  oth e r  ca regive rs - t h i s  accord i ng 

to the B i sm a rck Tri b u n e  of last Tuesday, J a n  29 of 2013 .  O u r  d e m og ra ph ics show 

that the  n u m be r  of us  65 a nd over is p rojected to n e a r ly d o u b l e  by 2030 as the  

ba by boomers { bo rn 1946-1964) age .  The re a re 74 m i l l i o n  of  u s .  

I have m a ny m o re k n owledgeab le  tha n  I t o  test ify tod ay o n  th is  i ssue, b u t  I wou ld 

l i ke to tel l  you that I have some amendme nts to s u b m it, wh ich I w i l l  exp l a i n, as 

we l l  as  a pa ragra p h  from the med ica l p rofess ion to read to yo u .  
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Ron G uggisberg 

D istrict 1 1  

Test imony I n  Support Of SB2323 

Cha i rm a n  Hogue a nd Members of the Senate Jud ic iary Com mittee, 

I wou ld  l i ke to express my support for th is l egislation .  As a fi refighter I 

took a n  oath to p rotect l ives and  that is what th is b i l l  does .  By requ i_ri ng 

hea lth care workers and  emergency responders to be mandatory 

reporters, it wi l l  ensure the proper p rotections a re in  p lace for 

vu l nera b le  adu lts. It wi l l a lso give responders clea r  d i rect io n  a bout 

their  respons ib i l ities when they witness a possib le  abuse s ituation .  



Mr. Cha irman  

Members of  the  Com m ittee 

My name is Cher M eyer, I am from Thompson North Dakota and  I a m  

here to test ify on Senate b i l l  2323 . 

I bel ieve th is  is b i l l  is vita l to every e lder person and the i r  fa m i l ies, i n  

every com m u n ity, t o  p rotect the rights and  safety o u r  e lder  popu lat ion 

both now and i n  the futu re. 

My background  is I ret i red from San Diego County Sheriff's Depa rtment 

in  San Diego Ca l iforn ia  after 20 yea rs, the last ten as a supervisor i n  

Emergency Com m u n icat ions .  I a lso ta ught over 1000 Senior Vo l unteers 

for the depa rtment.  

North Dakota is  one of two states that has  no MAN DATORY reporting 

laws for e lder  a buse.  We need to change th is ma ki ng the laws 

MAN DATORY not vo l u nta ry. When anyth ing is vo l unta ry, there is n o  

requ i rement for a n  action .  

Not a l l  e lder peop l e  l ive i n  nu rs ing homes or have 

conservators/guard ia ns to oversee the i r  p hysica l  ca re or fina nc ia l  

nf2�gs. f'JC?t a l l  e lder  a re g js(3b led.  The peop le  who a re in  these 

categories have people who ca re for the i r  physica l and fi nanc ia l  

concerns and m ust fo l low strict guide l i nes.  

R ight now for exam ple, an elder person ca n wa l k  i nto the i r  fi n a nc ia l 

institut ion and  ta ke out $ 10,000 i n  cash a n d  a l l  they wi l l  be asked i s  if 

they want an enve lope for the i r  money. A week later that sa me  pe rson 

cou ld  take a nother  $ 10,000 do l l a rs out a n d  NO ONE wi l l  ask why they 

would need th is m uch cash i n  such a short amount of time?  Wou l d n't 
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it seem that  someone shou ld have or  cou ld  have suspected that 

someth i ng  was not right in  th is s ituation? As it sta nds r ight n ow, there 

is no MAN DATORY law requ i ring a ny report ing of th is type of s ituation ! 

P lease do NOT th i nk  th is doesn't o r  ca n't ha ppen as I became  aware of 

th is  very type of situation after the damage was done to a fa m i ly 

member. I was stu nned that my adopted home state of North Da kota 

had NO MAN DATORY reporting l aws. 

When I made  i nqu i ries as to why no one was ca l led to report someth i ng 

wasn't q u ite r ight, I was told "we l l  she  is such a n ice person, we d idn't 

wa nt to get i nvo lved, we thought someth i ng wasn't right/' The n  I asked 

"a ren't you m a ndated reporters?" The a nswer was NO !  

E lder  abuse has  many forms which i nc lude physi ca l ,  menta l ,  fi n anci a l , 

sexua l, and  is one  of the most u n der  reported cr imes there i s .  

Somet imes an e lder  wi l l  mention i n  pass ing perhaps to the i r  d octor  o r  a 

trusted fri e nd or  a ne igh bor that someth ing  isn't right. Too often ou r 

e lders concerns  a re ignored beca use NO one is req u i red to report a 

suspic ion of poss ib le  abuse. 

We need to b ri ng awareness to th is a nd we m ust be the voice to 

requ i re ryiAN DATO RY repprt ing.  A sta ndard m ust pe in  p l a ce so that we 

have mandated reporters who M UST report susp icious a ctivity or 

concerns when  it comes to our e l der  popu l at ion without the  fea r  of 

reta l iation so that it ca n be i nvestigated comp lete ly. 

We must p rotect our e lder  popu lat ion now and  in the futu re .  O u r  

state i s  grow ing; the popu l at ion age wi l l  cont i nue  to i ncrease. I f  we 

make MAN DATORY reporting and  have mandated reporters then  

fi na ncia l i n stitutes, docto rs, l aw enfo rcement, c lergy a n d  others wi l l  b� 
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req u i red to report a ny susp icions of fi na ncia l or  any other type of e lder  

a buse. O u r  e lder  popu lat ion deserves honor and respect yet 

somet imes they a re mistreated or  forgotten or somet imes the situation 

they a re in gets ignored . These a re the peop le who ra i sed us a nd they 

deserve to be ca red for and  protected i n  a d ign ified man ner. We 

ou rselves a re going to a n  e lder someday wou ldn't you want the same 

protect ion of MAN DATORY report ing? 

The e lder popu lat ion ca n be vu l nera b l e  and easy ta rgets just l i ke our  

ch i l d ren .  We have so  many laws that protect our  ch i l d re n  and  have 

MAN DATORY report ing for suspic ions that invo lve ch i l d ren  then why 

a ren't we giv ing the same p rotect ions to our  e lder  popu l at ion ? 

Tha n k  you .  

Cher  Meyer 

Thompson N D  58278 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Murphy 

March 6, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2323 

Page 1 ,  l ine 9, remove "financial service provider," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 7, remove "section:" 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 1 8  through 20 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 1 , replace "b. "Medical" with "subsection. "medical" 

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 1 



H o use J ud ic iary Comm ittee 

S e nate B i l l  2323 

Test i m o ny of M i ke Reitan,  Assista nt Chief, West Fa rgo Pol ice Depart m e nt 

Cha i rm a n  Ko p pe l m a n  a nd m e m bers of the J ud i c i a ry Comm ittee I wo u l d  respectfu l ly  ask for yo u r  ' Do 

Pass'  recom m endation o n  SB2323 re lat ing to the re port ing of a b use or neglect of a vulnerable a d ult .  

It is  m u st u nfo rtu nate that there a re i n d ivid u a l s  who l ive amongst u s  that p rey u po n  the v u l n e ra bi l ity of 

a d u lts s u ffe ri n g  from d i m i nished mental o r  p h ysical  capa b i l it ies.  The West F a rgo Pol ice Department has 

responded to inc idents w he re an a d u lt may have been p hysica l ly o r  m e nta l ly  a b used or neglected by a 

fa m i ly m e m b e r, a n  acqua i nta nce, a care giver o r  a tota l stra nger. Oth e r  cases i nvolve theft or other 

perso n a l  cr imes co m m itted aga i nst the vict i m .  I had a sked o u r  detect ive sergeant  to provide a n  exa m ple 

of f inancia l  cr imes co m m itted aga i nst a vu l nera ble a d ult .  H e  provided the fo l lowing :  

2012 This  i ncident i nvolves a fe male  vu lnera b l e  a d u lt who is confi ned to a wheel  cha ir  a n d  at the t ime of  

t h i s  i nc ident d i d  have a l i fe coach who was a m a le a d u lt .  The l ife co ach took adva ntage of the v ict i m  by 

us ing her  credit card o n  seve ra l occasions t h ro ughout the Fargo Moorhead a re a .  The suspect h e l pe d  the 

vict i m  rece ive cash from her  ba n k  a n d  was given the p in  n u m ber to her  bank i n  c o nfid ence by the vict i m .  

T h e  sus pect i n it ia l ly sto le her  b i l lfold t o  ga i n  access t o  her  credit ca rd a nd a g a i n  use it n u m erous t i mes.  

The suspect was eventua l ly f ired b ut not u nt i l  h e  ra n up 1500.00 d o l l a rs i n  c redit  c a rd tra nsactio n s .  

F u rther  i nvestigation fo u n d  t h a t  t h e  suspect a l so d i d  t h i s  t o  h is  o w n  gran dfather a n d  that case i s  st i l l  

p e n d i n g  i n  Cass County. 

2007 The victim was 80 years o l d  at the t ime of o u r  i nvestigatio n .  The suspect w a s  and sti l l  is  a ca reer 

c ri m i n a l  i nvolving v u l n e ra ble a d u lts. Both p a rt ies had known one a n other for a l o ng period of t i m e .  The 

suspect knew that the victim was fi nanc ia l ly  wel l  to do a nd know the vict im's  m e nta l  health was gett ing 

wo rse by each passing m o nth .  The sus pect took the victi m to the b a n k  o n  seve ra l occasions a nd ta l ked 

the victim i nto withdra w i ng la rge amo u nts of cash i n  excess of 200,000.00 d o l l a rs ,  a n d  a l so gett ing  

m o ney from the vict im's  reti re ment acco u nts. The suspect i n  this case had j ust d o ne the same type of 

cr ime in M i n n esota which resu lted in a loss in excess of 400,000.00 d o l l a rs .  

T h e  co m m o n  thread i n  both of these cases was the suspect accessed the vict im's  b a n k  accou nts by going 

to the b a n k .  It is not u n common as we i nvestigate s i m i l a r  c rimes that we i nterv i e w  bank em ployees.  At 

d iffe re nt t imes we have heard sta teme nts a bout how the employee suspected so meth i ng was wrong 

b ut d i d  not feel  it was the ir  p lace to q u est ion the victim o r  to contact pol ice.  U n fo rtu nately, the vict ims 

seldom recover from their fi na ncia l  loss.  

The req u i re m ents of SB2323 d i recting certa i n  perso ns with d i rect contact to re p o rt known o r  s us pected 

neglect or a b use of a victim a re a key e l ement in provid i ng ea rly detection a nd p rotect ion.  The b i l l  a lso 

provides backing to an i n d ivid u a l  who oth e rwise might not have made the re p o rt u n der the fea r  of being 

wro ng o r  not want ing to be i nvo lved i n  someone e lse's busi ness. The re p o rting p a rty is a b l e  to state the 

report was d o ne u n der the req u i rements of the law a n d  removes the m isconce pt ion the decis ion was 

based u po n  a persona l  p rejud ice.  

Rapid reporting of known or sus pected a b use o r  neg lect is para m o u nt to the ear ly i nte rve ntion and the 

p hysical  and fi nanc ia l  recovery of the victim of a b use or n eglect. SB2323 p rovi d e s  for the key e l e m e nt of 

e a rly  re port ing necessa ry to protect the v u l n e ra b le ad u lts of North Da kota fro m a b use and neglect .  I ask 

for your  s u p po rt of SB232 3 .  



House J udic iary Comm ittee 

Senate B i l l  2323 

Testi m o ny of M i ke Reita n, Assistant Chief, West Fa rgo Pol ice Depa rtment 

Respectfu l ly submitted.  

Assistant Chief M i ke Reitan 

West Fa rgo Pol ice Department 

800 4th Ave E 

West Fargo, 58078 

701-433-5500 

fax 433-5508 

mike .re ita n @westfa rgond .gov<mai lto : m i ke . re ita n @ westfa rgon d .gov> 
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63 rd Legis lat ive Asse mbly of North Da kota 

Te sti mony i n  Su pport of SB 2323 
North Da kota Medica l Association 

M a rch 20, 2013 

C h a i rman Koppe l man a n d Members of the House J u d icia ry Co mm ittee : 

I a m  Dr. M ichae l  Booth,  a practi ci ng ca rd iovascu la r a n d  thoracic s u rgeon i n  
B isma rck a nd cu rre nt president of t h e  North Da kota Med ica l Associat ion,  w h o  I 
a m  represe nting today. 

Our orga n ization rises to spea k in favor of t h is b i l l  a nd recom mends a "Do Pa ss" 
from t h is co m m ittee subject to the comments outl ined be low. 

We do support ma ndatory re port ing of the suspected a buse a nd/or neglect of 
vu l n e ra b le a d u lts, who have previous ly been in the N o rth Da kota Ce ntu ry Code. 
For us  as med ica l providers this  is a log ica l extension of our m a ndate to report 
a b use and neglect for ch i l d ren .  

W e  u ndersta nd that the  re porting process does not mea n an  a uto matic cri m i n a l  
investigation of the i n d ivid ua ls in  q uestio n, but rather  t h e  in it iat ion o f  a process 
to eva l uate a n d  potentia l ly i nte rvene in a situation where a b u se or neglect has  
become a co nce rn .  Cri m i n a l  cha rges wo u ld on ly be one pote ntia l outco me, a n d  
hopefu l ly infreq ue ntly req u i red . Ba sed on ou r state' s 20 p l u s  yea rs o f  expe rie nce 
i n  i nvestigating  ch i ld  a buse, we bel ieve that t h is process may be i m p l e mented 
smoothly a nd fo r the benefit of a l l .  

The issue of fi na ncia l a buse o r  neglect i s  not cu rrently part of t h e  process that we 
as med ica l  prov iders have dea lt with in s ituations of ch i l d a b u se, but we do 
a p preciate its importa nce in vu lnera b le adu lts. 

We do be l ieve that the Ce ntu ry Code does provide an adequate defi n it ion fo r 
a buse a n d neglect to serve as the basis of th is b i l l .  
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We a lso be l ieve that the Centu ry Code adeq uate ly defi nes the vu l nera b le a d u lt. 
We wou ld encourage you to N OT add an age (other than majority) to the 
d efi n it ion of a vul nerab le a d u lt. (As the father of an autistic chi ld who wo uld 
potentia l ly be vu lnerab le at a ny t ime after his 18th b i rthday, this  spea ker is  
especi a l ly co ncerned about th is point . )  

Tha n k  you fo r the o p portun ity to address th is imp orta nt issue.  I wou ld be ha ppy 
to a n swer  a ny questions. 

Respectfu l ly subm itted, 

A.  M ichael  Booth MD PhD FACS 
P resident,  North Da kota Med ica l Association 
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House Jud iciary Committee 

March 20, 2013 

Senate Bi l l  2323 

By Kim Jacobson, Director - Tra i l l  County Socia l Services 

Chairman Koppe lman and members of the House Jud ic iary Committee, my name is Kim 

Jacobson.  I am the Director of Tra i l l  Cou nty Socia l Services located in H i l lsboro, North Dakota. I am a lso 

a member of the Region V Adult Protection Fund ing Committee and North Dakota County Social Service 

Director Association.  I speak in support of Senate Bi l l  2323.  

The North Da kota Legislature took an important step during the last bienn ium by appropriating a 

study to further understand the needs of vulnerable adu lts. The study, completed Winsor Schmitt, 

revealed many areas in which North Dakota could improve in protecting and serving vul nerable 

popu lations. M r. Schmitt's report recommended "North Dakota should change from vo lunta ry reporting 

of abuse or  neglect to ma ndatory reporting of abuse or  neglect." Senate B i l l  2323 sets this 

recommendation in  motion and includes an  appropriation to ensure implementation.  This 

would help define North Dakota as  a better place for vulnerable adu lts. 

North Dakota is one of on ly two states without mandatory reporting of vulnerable adult 

abuse and neglect. It is important to note that North Da kota does have mandatory reporting laws for 

suspected chi ld abuse and neglect. Mandatory reporting of abuse of vu lnerable adu lts would be 

very effective if a pproached in a s imi lar manner. 

Current chi ld protection law requ i res mandatory reporters to report suspected abuse or  neglect. It is 

not the ro le of the reporter to confirm the abuse/neglect, on ly to report suspected concerns. It is 

through proper assessment and investigation by qua l ified professionals ( law enforcement, ch i ld  

protection social  workers/team, etc.) that the report is  substantiated.  The identity of the 

reporter is  kept confidential  un less ordered by a court of law. These items ensure a safety net for both 

the a l leged victim and the reporter. These practices would be very effective if incorporated into 

mandatory reporting of suspected abuse and/or neglect of vulnerab le adu lts . 
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While we would a l l  love to say that North Dakota is a safe place to live and we take good ca re of our  

vu lnerab le adu lt populations, this is not a lways the case. Abuse and neglect of  North Da kota citizens 

happens each day. Our current system fa l ls seriously short i n  offering protections, consequences, 

resources, and safety nets for a id ing this population group. Fact is, our state is changing da i ly. Abuse 

and neglect can occur i n  many ways includ ing financial  exploitation, physical abuse, sexual  abuse, 

emotiona l  ma ltreatment, neglect, and se lf-harm.  It happens in North Dakota. 

The legislative body, publ ic servants, individuals identified as mandatory reporters, a nd citizens a l l  

have a role to he lp  protect our  vu lnerable popu lations. SB 2 3 2 3  sets the stage for ma ndatory reporting 

of suspected abuse of vulnerable adu lts. We cannot wait another year  or  unti l  the next legislative 

session to provide protections for our vu lnerable. 

It is important to note that the fisca l note in  SB 2323 is key to success of this bi l l .  N DCC clearly 

defines that the State is responsible for vulnerable adu lt protection. The current a ppropriation for 

vulnerable adu lt protective services is meager. The Wil l iston and Minot Regions share a .5 FTE for 

current adu lt protective services. There a re on ly 3.5 FTES for the entire state with the exception of 

Region V. The counties in Region V {Cass, Richland, Ransom, Sa rgent, Stee le and Tra i l l )  have actua l ly 

chosen to supplement the current state appropriation with county funds despite this being the 

responsibi l ity of the State, as the need is so great. Region V col lective employs 3 . 2 5  FTEs for adult 

protective services using state and county funds. 

This is a critical time in North Dakota history. There is an opportun ity today for each of you to play 

a vita l role i n  ensuring protections for North Dakota vulnerable adu lts. I u rge you to ta ke this t ime to 

seek to understand the need to protect vulnerable adu lts and to commit to a statewide 

system to financia l ly support efforts to protect North Da kota's adult vulnerables. 

I u rge you to give Senate B i l l  2 3 2 3  a "Do PASS" recommendation. Thank  you for your  consideration . 
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Ho use J u d icia ry Co m m ittee 

Sixty-Th i rd Leg is lative Asse m bly of North Da kota 
Se nate B i l l  N o .  2 3 2 3  

M a rch 27,  20 1 3  

Good morn i n g ,  Cha i rm a n  Ko ppel m a n  a n d  Members of the H o u se 

J u d icia ry Co m m ittee : I a m  David Boeck, a State e m p l oyee a n d  lawyer fo r 

the Protection & Advocacy Project . The Protection & Advocacy Project is  a n  

i ndepe n d e n t  state agency that acts to p rotect peop le  with d isa b i l it ies from 

a buse, n e g lect, a n d  exploitation,  a n d  a d vocates fo r the d i sabi l ity- related 

rig hts of people with d isa b i l ities .  

The Protectio n  & Ad vocacy Project su pports the proposed req u i re m ent 

fo r re porti n g  a b use and neglect of  v u l n e ra b le a d u lts . It l i ke ly  is esse n ti a l  to 

an effective syste m to protect vu l n era b le  a d u lts . 

Presently there is  a vol unta ry re porti ng  system for re porti ng  su spected 

a buse or n eg l ect of v u l n era ble a d u lts a n d  J a n  E n g a n  is  here fro m the Ag i n g  

Services D ivis ion of the Depa rtment o f  H u m a n  Services to a nswer a ny 

q u esti o n s  the Co m m ittee may have a bo ut how the vo l u nta ry progra m  works 

a n d  how a m a n d ato ry reporti ng prog ra m  wou l d  operate . 

Th e re is a l ready a law that req u i res certa i n  i n d ivid u a l s  to report to the 

Protection & Advoca cy Proj ect the s uspected a buse or  neg lect of an a d u lt 

with a deve lopmenta l  d i sa b i l ity or  a m e nta l i l l n ess.  Th is req u i rement  m ig h t  

not i nc l u d e  a d u lts with tra u matic bra i n  i nj u ries, a d u lts with physica l 

i m pa i rm e nts that d o  n ot arise fro m a d evelo p m e nta l d isa b i l ity, stroke 

su rvivors, a n d  some ad u lts with ca nce r, a m ong othe rs .  

Page N o .  1 



N o  o n e  w i l l  have d o u bl e  reportin g  respons ib i l ities if S B  2 3 2 3  is  

a m e n d e d  a s  p ro posed i n  a sepa rate docu ment I have d istri bute d  w ith my 

testim o n y .  

Tha n k  you .  P lease l et m e  know i f  y o u  have q u esti o n s .  

P a g e  N o . 2 



Proposed Amendments to E n g rossed Senate B i l l  2 3 2 3  

Page 2 ,  after l i n e  5,  i n sert:  

" 2 .  A report, if req u i red by sectio n  25-0 1 . 3-04,  satisfies a l l  reporti ng 

req u i re ments of th is  chapte r . "  

Ren u m be r  accord i n g ly 
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Vu l n e ra b le Ad u lt Protective Services 

B rea kout of i nta kes fo r a l leged vu l nera b le  a d u lt protective services reports 
from October 1 ,  20 1 2  to M a rch 6, 20 1 3 .  The i nta ke beg i n s  the scree n i n g  
p rocess for a n  assessment or provid ing i nfo rmation or  ed ucation . I ntakes 
a re m oved to the assessm ent ( i nvestigati o n )  sta g e  a n d  a re d ete r m i n ed to be 
su bsta ntiated or u n s u bsta ntiated . Su bsta ntiated re ports a re prio ritized 
based on severity with a fa ce-to-face visit of the a l leged victi m for fu rther 
assessment and action . 

Inta ke Reports 

Reg ion I { Divide, W i l l i a ms, a n d  McKenzie) 

Cou nty N u m ber of Inta kes 
B u rle igh1  1 
Div ide 3 
McKenzie 4 
W i l l i a m s  1 2  

TOTAL 20 
1 Report ta ken i n  B u rle ig h Cou nty on a resi dent fro m Reg ion I 

Reg ion II  { B u rke, Renvi l le, Botti nea u, M o u ntra i l, Wa rd, McHenry, 
a n d  Pi erce ) 

County N u m ber of I nta kes 
Botti nea u 2 
B u rke 1 
M c H e n ry 1 0  
M o u ntra i l  3 
P ierce 2 
Renvi l l e 5 
Ward 4 1  

TOTAL 64 
Reg ion III { Rolette, Towner, Cava l ier, Ra msey, Benson, a n d  Eddy) 

County N u m ber of I nta kes 
Be nson 7 
Cava l i er  4 
Eddy 5 
Ra m sey 1 6  
Rol ette 1 3  
Towne r  1 

TOTAL 46 
1 



Reg ion  IV ( Pem bi na, Walsh, Nelson, a n d  G ra n d  Forks) 

Cou nty N u m ber of Inta kes 
Tra i l l 2 1 
G ra n d  Forks 80 
Ne lson 3 
Pe m bina 6 
W a l s h  7 
U n identified Cou nty 2 

TOTAL 9 9  
2 Report taken i n  Gra n d  Forks Cou nty on a resident fro m Reg ion V (Tra i l l )  

Reg ion  V ( Steele, Tra i l l, Cass, Ra nsom, Sargent, a n d  Rich l a n d )  

Cou nty N u m ber of Inta kes 
Cass 1 3 8 
Clay 4 
Moody 1 
Ric h l a n d  2 
Steele 1 
Tra i l  I 3 
U n i dentified Cou nty 

TOTAL 150 

Reg ion  V I  ( Wel ls, Foster, G riggs, Stutsman, Barnes, Logan,  La M o u re, 
M ci ntosh, a nd Dickey) 

Cou nty N u m ber of I nta kes 
Barnes 1 2  
Dickey 1 
Foste r 1 
G riggs 3 
La mou re 2 
Log a n  1 
Mci ntosh 1 
Stuts m a n  1 7  
U n ide ntified County 2 

TOTAL 40 
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Reg ion VII ( M clea n, Sheridan, Mercer, Ol ive r, B u rlei g h, Kidd er, 
M orton, G rand,  Sio ux, E m mons) 

Cou nty N u m ber of Inta kes 
B u rle igh 3 2  
E m m o n s  3 
G ra n d  Forks 1 
G ra nt 1 
K idder  1 
Mclea n  5 
M o rton 1 3  
S i oux 1 

TOTAL 57 

Reg ion VIII ( D u n n, B i l l i ngs, Golden Va l ley, Sta rk, Slope, H etti n ger, 
Bowm a n, a n d  Ada m s )  

Cou nty N u m ber of I nta kes 
U n i dentified Co u nty 1 
Ada m s  1 
Bow m a n  2 
D u n n  5 
H etti nge r 1 
M cKenzie 1 
Sta rk 1 8  

TOTAL 28 

S U M MARY BY REGION 

REGION N U M BE R  OF I NTAKES 
Region I 20 
Region II  64 
Regio n  III  46 
Region IV 99 
Region V 1 5 0 
Regions  VI 40 
Region VII 57 
Region V III  28 
Tota l Inta ke 10/ 1 / 1 2  -3/6/2013 504 
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Investigations 

From October 1 ,  2 0 1 2  to  M a rch 7 ,  2 0 1 3 ,  3 0 9  i nta kes were m oved to  
i n vestigation status .  At th is  t ime a face-to-face a ssessment  is com p l eted . 

Once a n  assessment  is  com p l eted the d etermi n ation is m a d e  to w h ether the 
report is s u bsta ntiated o r  u ns u bsta ntiated . Of the 3 0 9  i nta kes m oved to 
i nvestigation status there a re 1 2 5  cases of w h i c h  78 a re s u bsta n tiated a n d  
4 7  a re u nsu bsta ntiated . The cases a re i n  t h e  fo l lowing catego ries : 

• Abuse - 1 2  
• Explo itat ion - 2 1  
• Neg l ect - 24 
• Self- N e g l ect - 68 
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Department of Human Services 
Aging Services Division 

Vulnerable Protective Services Report Sources 
October 1, 2012 - March 27, 20131 

Reporter Category 

FAMILY 1 15 
Spouse 

Children 
In-laws 
Siblings 
Parents 

Unidentified 

4 

50 

14 

15 

1 0  

22 

SELF 30 

COMMUNITY I AGENCY 201 
Advocate 3 

Bank 4 

Church 4 

Friend 10 

Legal Guardian 1 

Licensed Practitioner 2 

Neighbor 15 

Other 45 

Other Professional 59 

Unidentified 58 

HOUSING 3 
Group Home Staff 2 

Ass't Living Staff 1 

IN-HOME SERVICES 8 
In-Home Aide 1 

Medical Home Health 7 

LEGAL 16 
Attorney 2 

Law Enforcement 1 0  

Legal 4 

MEDICAL 75 
Doctor 6 

Health Medical Professional 68 

Health Practitioner 1 

SOCIAL WORK 192 
HCBS Case Manager 27 

Hospital 49 

Medical Home Health 41 

Agency/Community 75 

TOTAL REPORTS 640 
1Report contains an additional three weeks of data. Data is 
recorded by date of entry and date of report. 
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